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Group of Companies

VISION STATEMENT
“To be an internationally competitive ICT investment
company in the Pacific.”

MISSION STATEMENT
“To enhance shareholder value by pursuing areas that
leverage off our core investments in ICT.”

VALUES
ATH’s values are:

INTEGRITY
Practising good corporate governance and being faithful
to our stakeholders.

ACCOUNTABILITY

Helping our stakeholders understand how we make
decisions, taking ownership and being answerable and
responsible for our actions.

INNOVATION
Being at the forefront of product service and service
offerings.

EFFICIENCY
Delivering on time, and getting things right the first time.

EFFECTIVENESS
Ensuring that our business is aligned with, and ultimately
contributes to the achievement of our vision.

GOALS

ATH’s goals are:

- Enhance shareholder value.

- Exploit convergence between the information and
telecommunication sectors to enter new areas of
business.

- Acquire existing businesses or create and invest in
newly established businesses to achieve growth.

- Become a company operating internationally and
prominent in the Pacific.

- Adopt international best practices, standards and
methods of operation
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It is my pleasure to present the Annual Report of the ATH Group for the
financial year ending 30 June 2024 on behalf of the Board of Directors.
This year has been remarkable for the Group, as we continue to see a
robust recovery across the Pacific from the disruptions caused by the
pandemic. The resurgence of economic activities has further underscored
the critical importance of reliable and advanced telecommunication
services, and ATH Group has been at the forefront of meeting these
demands.

A key highlight of this financial year was the successful launch of the 5G
network by our subsidiary in American Samoa, making it the first nation
in the Pacific to fully adopt 5G technology. This milestone is not only a
testament to our commitment to innovation and leadership in the region
but also a significant step forward in enhancing connectivity, supporting
businesses and improving the quality of life for our customers.

Throughout the year, we maintained our focus on strategic consolidation
and expansion across the Pacific region, ensuring that we remain a key
player in the telecommunications industry. Our efforts have been quided
by our mission to provide unparalleled service quality, customer care
and operational efficiency across all our subsidiaries. These initiatives are
in line with our commitment to our shareholders and key stakeholders,
who remain central to our decision-making processes.

In recognition of our shareholders, who continue to be the foundation of
our Group, the Board has endorsed a dividend of $0.03 per share, an
increase of 20% compared to last year.

Challenges

One of the ongoing challenges we face is staying ahead in a rapidly
changing technological landscape. The advent of 5G technology and the
continuous evolution of digital services require us to remain agile and
innovative. Our markets are subject to competitive pressures and
technological advancements, which we must navigate to ensure
long-term success.

This year, we continued our restructuring efforts across the ATH Group to
align with market developments and customer needs. The launch of 5G
in American Samoa is a prime example of how we are adapting to new
technologies and setting the stage for future growth. We remain
committed to exploring all avenues for improvement, including the
ongoing consolidation of Group companies to enhance performance.

Appointments

This year saw a significant change in our leadership structure. While the
Board composition remained largely unchanged, there was a transition
in the Chairmanship. Mr. Dakshesh Patel stepped down as Chairman and
Mr. Attar Singh was elected as the new Board Chair, with Ms. Tanya
Waqanika taking on the role of Deputy Chairperson. These changes

reflect our commitment to strong governance and leadership continuity.

I would like to extend our heartfelt thanks to Mr. Patel for his exemplary
leadership and dedication during his tenure as Chairman. His contributions
have been invaluable in quiding ATH Group through a period of growth and
transformation.

Future Outlook on Consolidation and Structure

As we look ahead to FY2025, ATH Group is well-positioned to navigate
the challenges and uncertainties that lie ahead. While cost inflation and
a shifting geopolitical landscape continue to impact global markets, I am
confident that our Group has the resilience and adaptability to overcome
these challenges and seize new opportunities.

In line with our commitment to staying at the forefront of technological
advancements, ATH is targeting the launch of 5G in Fiji at the earliest
opportunity. The Vodafone Fiji network has successfully completed all
necessary 5G upgrades and has commenced trials. The commercial
launch will proceed as soon as the required requlatory approvals and
spectrum allocation are granted. This is a significant step in our
strategy to enhance digital connectivity across the region.

Similarly, our operations in other Pacific Island nations are also
advancing towards 5G capability. Both Vodafone Samoa and
Vodafone Vanuatu have either completed or are in the process of
upgrading their networks to 5G. These developments will further
strengthen our position as a leading telecommunications provider in
the Pacific, enabling us to deliver cutting-edge services and support
the evolving needs of our customers.

In its second year of operations, Vodafone PNG has demonstrated
remarkable progress across key business areas, leading to significant
revenue growth compared to the previous financial year. With the
expansion of network coverage to all 22 provinces and strategic
partnerships with recharge distributors and dealers, the company has
enhanced brand visibility and customer convenience. Vodafone PNG
now boasts around 800 sites, supported by multiple redundancy
systems and 4G+ capabilities, ensuring a reliable customer experience.
The company's people strategy focuses on nurturing local talent, with
95% of staff being PNG nationals, and promoting a culture of continuous
growth, leadership and diversity. Financially, the growing customer base
continues to drive revenue growth, positioning the company to
challenge the mobile market's low penetration rate in the country.
Looking ahead, Vodafone PNG remains committed to delivering value
and fostering long-term growth for its shareholders.

Our M-paisa platform continues to be a strong performer, with
projected annual transactions exceeding $3 billion. Earlier this year, we
launched the M-paisa Mastercard services, which have revolutionized
the banking sector by providing all M-paisa users with a payment
instrument that can be used for both local and international transactions.
This innovation has significantly broadened access to financial services,
particularly for those previously without such capabilities.

Building on this success, ATH aims to launch similar products across
the Pacific, further expanding our reach and providing essential
financial services to the unbanked. We remain committed to exploring
opportunities to grow our investment portfolio and will continue
working closely with major shareholders and international partners to
enhance our digital footprint and deliver innovative solutions across
the region.

Acknowledgment

| would like to express my deepest appreciation to my fellow
Directors for their unwavering support and counsel throughout the
year. My gratitude also extends to the Directors of our subsidiary
boards for their invaluable contributions.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our stakeholders, the
dedicated ATH Group staff, our subsidiary management teams and
the CEOs and management of ATH companies for their hard work and
dedication. Your efforts have been instrumental in achieving our
goals and driving the Group forward.

Attar Singh
Chairman
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our network infrastructure,
enhancing our service offerings,
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The financial year 2024 has been pivotal for Amalgamated Telecom
Holdings Limited (ATH Group) as we focused on consolidating our
operations, streamlining the group structure and enhancing our
customer-centric approach. Our strategy centred around the successful
launch of the 5G network and the expansion of our fibre network
across the region. These initiatives are aligned with our commitment to
staying at the forefront of technological advancements while ensuring
that our customers have access to the best connectivity solutions
available.

The Fijian economy demonstrated steady growth throughout the year,
supported by favourable financial conditions. Ample banking system
liquidity, standing at $1.9 billion as of June 24, has contributed to a
historically low lending rate, which in turn has fuelled private sector
credit growth of 9.4% year-over-year as of May. These macroeconomic
factors have provided a solid foundation for our operations, allowing us
to maintain a strong market presence and continue our expansion
efforts across the Pacific.

Financial Highlights

ATH Group reported a net profit after tax of $9.20 million for the 12
months of the financial year 2024, a significant increase from the $4.83
million reported for the 15-month period ending june 2023. This is
138% improvement from the comparable 12-months proportionate
net profit after tax for FY23 closing at $3.86 million. The improvement
in profitability underscores the effectiveness of our strategic initiatives
and our focus on operational efficiency.

Revenue for the 12-month period ending June 2024 was $936 million,
slightly down from $960 million recorded during the 15-month audit
period ending June 2023 and 22% higher then the comparable 12-
months for FY23. FY23 Proportionate 12-month revenue closed at $768
million. Our EBITDA saw a notable increase, closing at $207 million, up
from $172 million in the previous period, reflecting a $35 million
improvement. This also reflects an improvement of $69 million against
comparable 12-months of FY23 performance. This increase was driven
by the continued ramp up of the PNG Business and solid performance
from our Fiji based business.

The Group’s debt level increased to $692 million in FY24 from $650
million in FY23. This was primarily due to investments in Papua New
Guinea (PNG) and other strategic investments in Fiji. While the PNG
operations posed challenges, including a complex political
environment and foreign currency issues that hindered the timely flow
of funds, we are optimistic about the future. The PNG business has
achieved positive EBITDA performance in the first months of FY2025,
marking a milestone development for Vodafone PNG.

Business Development

Throughout FY24, ATH Group remained proactive in exploring new
opportunities across the Pacific region, with a focus on expanding our
footprint and enhancing our service offerings should these look
attractive. Our investments pipeline remains robust, with ongoing
discussions to identify and pursue attractive opportunities that are
aligned to our overall strategies.

The recent entry of Starlink into the market presents important
developments for ATH. While Starlink is a competitive option at the
retail front, we also view significant opportunity to leverage of the
capabilities to enhance our services and help bridge the digital
divide by connecting underserved communities in a cost-effective
manner. Our subsidiary, Telecom Fiji Limited (TFL), along with
potentially others in the near future, is partnering with Starlink to
leverage Starlink satellite technology, which will extend our reach
and improve connectivity across the region.

While ATH sees potential in collaborating with telco operators like
Starlink to expand mobile coverage in remote areas, we also have
concerns. The rise of LEO satellites potentially raises issues related
to data sovereignty, information security, and compliance with
exchange control requlations and tax laws. Additionally, ATH
believes that uniform terms and conditions for all internet service
operators are essential to ensure fair competition in the market.

Our strategic focus on consolidation and synerqy realisation within
the Group continues, with several key projects currently in
progress. These initiatives are aimed at optimizing our operations,
reducing costs, and enhancing value for our stakeholders.

Business Outlook

The outlook for ATH Group remains positive as we continue
to navigate the evolving technological landscape in the
telecommunications sector. Our investments in the 5G network
underscore our confidence in the economic environment and the
markets we serve. We are committed to providing our customers
with cutting-edge technology and superior service, ensuring that
we remain a leader in the industry.

As we move forward, our focus will remain on expanding our
network infrastructure, enhancing our service offerings, and
exploring new growth opportunities across the Pacific. We are
confident that our strategic initiatives will drive long-term value for
our shareholders and position ATH Group for sustained success.

Acknowledgement

I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all stakeholders of
ATH Group, including our shareholders, financiers, staff, management,
and business partners. Your unwavering support and commitment
have been instrumental in our success, and we look forward to
continuing our journey together as we strive to achieve greater
heights.

Thank you for your trust and confidence in ATH Group.

ye

Ivan Fong
Chief Executive Officer
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COMPANY PROFILE

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited (ATH) was incorporated as
a public company on 10 March 1998 as the vehicle through which
the Fiji Government’s investments in the telecommunications
sector were consolidated for the purpose of privatisation under its

public sector reform programme.

ATH commenced operations on 16 December 1998 following
the sale of a 49% strategic stake in the Company to the Fiji
National Provident Fund (FNPF) through a tender process in

which a number of international parties participated.

In September 1999, FNPF consolidated its control of ATH after it
acquired a further 2% of the issued shares as per contractual
obligations.  Consequently, FNPF's shareholding increased to
51% while Government’s shareholding decreased to 49%.

Government further sold 9.7% of its shares in February 2002
through a Private Placement with institutional investors including
FNPF. A month later an additional 4.7% of Government’s shares
were sold in a Public Offer, consequently, reducing its shareholding
to 34.6%, while FNPF's shareholding increased to 58.2%.

On 22 December 2015, through a Special Crossing on the South
Pacific Stock Exchange (SPX), Government partially divested
50% of its remaining shares in ATH. As a result, FNPF increased
its shareholding in ATH from 58.2% to 72.3% while Government
remains ATH's second largest shareholder with 17.3% interest.

A Rights Issue offer was approved by the shareholders at the
ATH Annual General Meeting on 6 November 2019. In
consequence, FNPF decreased its shareholding from 73.22% to
72.71% when the non-renounceable rights issue offer closed on
31 May 2021 while Government’s shareholding decreased from
16.29% to 15.25%.

As of 30 June 2024, the remaining 12.05% belongs to 1,406
shareholders and individuals.

Through its investments and provision of direct services in a
broad range of telecommunications and related services, ATH is
Fiji’s main telecommunications holding Company. The Company
first extended its footprint in the region with its acquisitions in
Kiribati and Vanuatu, followed by the acquisition of the Bluesky
Group and its operations in Samoa, American Samoa and the
Cook Islands on 22 February 2019, together with the acquisition
of the Digitec Group in Papua New Guinea, on 4 June 2019. The
principal activities of the ATH Group include the provision of:

Voice, internet and data related services;

Business communications solutions;

ICT and surveillance products;

Transaction management and prepaid services;
Directory information services;

Business Processing Outsourcing (BPO), including call
centre services; and

International telecommunications facilities.

Group Structure

Telecom Fiji Pte Limited (TFL) is @ 100% owned subsidiary of
ATH and provides fixed telephony services, broadband internet,
international voice and data connectivity, sale of telephone
equipment and sale of office and computer equipment.
Vodafone Fiji Pte Limited (Vodafone Fiji) is the country’s
leading provider of mobile telecommunications services and
mobile phone money transfer service. Vodafone Fiji is owned
on a 51%:49% basis by ATH and FNPF respectively.

0n 20 May 2015, Vodafone Fiji acquired 100% of Datec (Fiji)
Pte Limited which is one of Fiji's leading IT companies. This
acquisition was made to solidify Vodafone Fiji's position as the
premier provider of end-to-end ICT solutions for the enterprise

and business segment.

Fiji International Telecommunications Pte Limited (FINTEL) is a
100% owned subsidiary of ATH which provides and operates
international telecommunication facilities and connectivity for
operators in Fiji and the region.

ATH acquired substantially all the assets of Telecommunications
Services Kiribati Limited (TSKL) on 26 May 2015 and incorporated
a new company, Amalgamated Telecom Holdings (Kiribati)
Limited (ATHKL), now trading as Vodafone Kiribati Limited, to
hold and operate the assets and provide telecommunication
services in Kiribati.

On 27 March 2017, ATH acquired 100% share capital of
Telecom Vanuatu Limited (TVL), a leading telecommunications
operator in Vanuatu, from MT International Ventures PCC, an
investment vehicle wholly owned by Mauritius Telecom
Limited. Telecom Vanuatu Limited (now trading as Vodafone
Vanuatu) is incorporated and domiciled in Vanuatu.

ATH completed its transaction with Amper SA to acquire its
interests in the Bluesky Group on 22 February 2019. The
Bluesky Group consists of key telecommunication operators
and submarine cables in the telecommunications industry in
Samoa, Cook Islands and the Territory of American Samoa. The
Bluesky Group’s operations include AST Telecom, LLC; Samoa
American Samoa Cable; American Samoa Hawaii Cable;
Vodafone Samog; and Vodafone Cook Islands. It represents
another breakthrough in the expansion strategy of the Group,
consolidating ATH's interests in the Pacific and reinforcing its
presence as one of the key telecommunications operators of
the region.

In addition, ATHIV, incorporated in Singapore on 7 December
2018, purchased 70% shareholdings in each of Digitec
Communications Limited, Etech ICT Pte Limited and Etech ICT
Pty Limited. The Digitec Group of Companies is based in
Papua New Guinea, Singapore and Australia respectively and
provides internet services, computing hardware, software
and cloud services in Papua New Guinea. In April 2020, the
Group transferred Digitec ICT Limited, Etech ICT Pte Limited
and Etech ICT Pty Limited, under Vodafone Fiji Limited.

ATH ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | 9
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Annual Compliance Report on Corporate Governance

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited For the Financial Year Ended on 30 June 2024

Rg% Principle g@ Requirement 4 Compliance Status
01. Separation of Duties The separation of roles between the Board and
Establish Clear Management is crucial for maintaining strong governance
Responsibilities Clear separation of duties and enhances the Board's strategic oversight role.
for Board Oversight between Board and Senior

Management. The Board is comprised of 7 Non- Executive Directors who

assess and approve the strategic direction of the Company
and review the incremental progress of the business in
alignment to strategic goals. As Non- Executive Directors the
Board maintains an independent perspective in executing its
oversight role. Key functions of the Board include decisions
on investments, strategic matters, receiving updates on
business performance from the CEO and Senior Management.
The Board maintains an overall view in evaluating the capital
and resource implications of the strateqy in driving for
long-term value creation for shareholders

Board Charter There is a Board Charter in place for the Company which

outlines the role and responsibilities and structure of the Board
Adopt a Board Charter detailing of Directors. The Board Charter defines the authority and
functions and responsibilities. responsibility of the Board, establishes a governance framework

that is aligned to the Corporate Governance Code for ATH. The
governance practices addressed through the Board Charter
includes, how meetings are conducted, decision-making
process and how conflicts of interests are managed.

The Board Charter ensures accountability for Board Directors
and serves as an operational quiding procedure for the Board
and Subcommittee’s, which enables the Board to function
efficiently and effectively.

Further, the current implementation of a Revised Code of
Corporate Governance for the Company enhances sound
board governance mechanisms for ATH.

02. Board Composition The Board comprises of seven (7) Non- Executive Directors,
Constitute of which four (4) are Strategic Investor Directors nominated
an Effective Board Balanced Board Composition with by the majority Shareholder Fiji National Provident Fund

(FNPF), and three (3) are Fiji Directors nominated by the

Executive and Non-Executive
Government of Fiji.

Directors of which one third of
total number of Directors to be

: . A person may be nominated as a Director at a General
independent Directors.

Meeting if the person has been nominated by the Directors,
or by one or more members holding in aggregate at least
10% of all the voting shares, for election at that meeting.
One third of Fiji Directors retire by rotation each year and the
retiring Directors are eligible to be nominated for re-election.

Two of the seven Directors have met the necessary SPX
required pre-requisites to be regarded as Independent Directors.
The fulfillment of independent directorship requirements,
ensures diversity of expertise, insights and the availability of
independent leadership perspective on the Board.

12 ‘ ATH ANNUAL REPORT 2024




Annual Compliance Report on Corporate Governance

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited For the Financial Year Ended on 30 June 2024

%% Principle

g& Requirement

Do you have a policy for
promoting gender diversity at
Board level and have you
achieved your policy goals?

Nominations Committee

Selection, approval, renewal
and succession of Directors to
be conducted by the Nomina-
tions Committee in accordance
with Articles of Association of

the Company and Fit and Proper

Policy of Reserve Bank.

Board Evaluation

Process of evaluation of
performance of the Board, its
Committees and individual
Directors. Evaluation to be
linked to key performance
indicators of the listed entity.

Compliance Status

[\

Whilst the Company does not have a separate policy on
gender diversity at Board level, the Board Charter requires
the Board to promote fairness in appointments and decision
making.

The updated Code of Corporate Governance allows the Board
to outline certain key areas of consideration such as gender
diversity which are to serve as quideline for appointing
shareholders to consider while nominating Directors to the
Board. The Code of Corporate Governance articulates the
Board’s commitment to promote ethical and responsible
decision making.

The Nominations Committee of the Board oversees other
governance matters for appointments to the Board and
quides the Board to address gender diversity considerations
in Board appointment processes.

A Nomination Committee Charter is in place to provide
quidance and outline the roles and responsibilities of the
Committee. The Nominations Committee oversees and
monitors Board performance, succession planning, Director
development and to ensure diversity at both the ATH holding
company level and at subsidiaries level.

The updated Code of Corporate Governance also addresses
specific requirements for Fit and Proper assessment of the
Directors, to conducted by the appointing shareholder prior to the
confirmation of a Director’s appointment.

There is a Board Evaluation process and guideline in place
which is facilitated by the Company Secretary in consultation
with the Nominations Committee.  The objective of the
evaluation process is to support and develop Directors, and to
identify areas of improvements to be collectively managed
by the Board. Board Evaluation ensures that individual
directors and the Board as a whole work efficiently in
achieving their functions towards ATH.

The additional process for Board evaluation for ATH Directors,
includes peer assessments and self-assessments for the
Board and Subcommittee Directors.

ATH ANNUAL REPORT 2024 ‘ 13




Annual Compliance Report on Corporate Governance

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited For the Financial Year Ended on 30 June 2024

@ Principle

%@ Requirement

Directors Training

The Director’s training and
induction procedure to be in
place to allow new Directors to

participate fully and effectively.

Board Sub-Committees

Board must have sub-commit-
tees which must at a minimum
include:

Audit Committee;

Risk Management
Committee; and Nominations
Committee/Recruitment
Committee.

Compliance Status

A

Board Directors are taken through an induction process when
they join the Board. Board induction includes presentation
and information sessions conducted by the CEO and
Executive management. During the Board induction a new
Director is taken through a series of information sessions to
provide the Directors with key information about the
business. The process of onboarding company directors is
critical for the Company in allowing Directors to ask
questions about the business, meet key stakeholders and
also conduct site and office visits, to ensure a Director is well
informed and equipped to act as a non-executive Director for
the Company.

It is compulsory for all newly appointed Directors to attend
the induction programme.

Workshops and information sessions are organised for
Directors on an ongoing basis, to ensure Directors are
updated on pertinent matters and industry updates relating
to the business. External consultants and stakeholders are
engaged on a need to basis to provide technical expertise
and feedback to the Board.

There are (3) Board subcommittees that actively reviews
and discusses Management recommendations before
submission to the full Board for decision.

The 3 Board committees are:

(i) Audit Finance & Risk Committee

(i) Nominations Committee

(i) Human Resources & Remuneration Committee

The Board is currently in the process of finalising a Cybersecurity
Committee, as it recognises the importance of strengthening
the Board's technology expertise as a key element of its ability
to oversee strategy.

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee plays a pivotal
role in safequarding the Company’s financials, ensuring
compliance and managing risks effectively. The Committee
provides oversight in the areas of Audit, Finance and Risk
Management.

Through its audit oversight function, the Committee ensures
the accuracy and integrity of Company financials and oversees
the external and internal audit conducted for the Company.

14 ‘ ATH ANNUAL REPORT 2024




Annual Compliance Report on Corporate Governance

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited For the Financial Year Ended on 30 jJune 2024

@ Principle

Appointment of Chief
Executive Officer/
Managing Director

03.

Appointment of
Chief Executive
officer/Managing

04.

Appointment of a
Board and Company
Secretary

%ﬁ' Requirement

Chief Executive Officer

To appoint a suitably qualified
and competent Chief Executive
Officer

Company Secretary

Board to appoint a suitably
qualified and competent
Company Secretary, who is
accountable to the Board,
through the Chair, for all
compliance and governance
issues.

Compliance Status

AL

On Finance matters, the Committee reviews and
recommends financial policies to the Board to ensure they
align with best practices and requlatory requirements. The
Committee reviews and recommends the Company annual
budget, financial forecast and major financial decision to the
Board. Financial control mechanisms are also monitored for
effective implementation by the Company.

The Committee also oversees that risks in the Company are
managed and mitigated without having any negative impact
on the group and also ensure that all effective controls are in
place.

The Human Resources Committee quides the Board and
Management on matters pertaining to the Company’s
human capital. The Committee addresses recruitment, terms
and conditions of employment for executives, succession
planning and remuneration.

The HR Committee ensure the Company is well resourced
with the right skillset and people, in order to achieve its
mission and goals.

The Nominations Committee is responsible for the
selection, approval, renewal and succession of Directors in
the subsidiary companies of the Group.

Whilst the corporate governance responsibilities for the
Company are co-shared amongst the three sub-committees
of the Board, the Board continuously seeks out opportunities
to enhance the roles of these Committees, to ensure sound
corporate governance for the Company.

Mr. Ivan Fong is the Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Ashnil Prasad, who is the Chief Investment Officer, is also
the Company Secretary of ATH.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for developing and
implementing business strategies and policy quidelines,
managing budgets, financial reports and key performance
indicators, ensures requlatory and statutory compliance and
the effective management of relationships with internal and
external stakeholders for the Company, and drives for staff
performance through leadership and ongoing initiatives for
staff development.
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Annual Compliance Report on Corporate Governance

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited For the Financial Year Ended on 30 jJune 2024

Q‘% Principle

05.
Timely and Balanced
Disclosure

06.

Promote Ethical and
Responsible Decision
Making

Annual Reports

Timely and accurate disclosures
are made in Annual Reports as
per Rule 51 of Listing Rules.

Payment to Directors and Senior
Management

Sufficient information to be
provided to shareholders on
remuneration paid to Directors
and Senior Management.

Continuous Disclosure

General disclosures or Company
announcements to be made in
a timely manner. The disclo-
sures should be factual without
omitting material information
and to be expressed in a clear
and objective manner to
shareholders.

Code of Conduct

To establish a minimum Code of
Conduct of the listed entity
applicable to Directors, senior
management and employees
and conduct regular training on
the same.

Compliance Status

[\

To ensure the Company remains fully accountable and to
shareholders, ATH remains compliant with all disclosure
requirements as per SPX Listing Rules and the Reserve Bank of
Fiji Guidelines for Listed Companies. Disclosure requirements
include the reporting of 6 monthly unaudited financials,
market announcements on key changes to the business
structure, changes in Board and executive appointment and
other information about the business for the information of
the market.

The publication of the Annual Report for the ATH Group of
Companies is conducted on an annual basis and ensures
ongoing disclosure and requlatory compliance.

In the previous FY 3 total of $224,000 was paid out to Board
Directors as remuneration for their services to the Company.

The ATH Board members are non-executive Directors who attend
Board meetings and other engagements in their capacity as
Directors, for and on behalf of the Company.

The Company has also met other expenses for Directors during
the year, which includes travels costs and accommodation
incurred by Directors in attending to their duties for ATH.

ATH Directors are covered under a Directors and Officers
Insurance Policy and a Personal Accident Insurance Policy.

Compensation paid for senior management is disclosed in this
Annual Report under Key Management Personnel Compensation.

ATH continues to make timely, accurate and full disclosure to
the market as per the SPX listing rules

The Company has a Code of Conduct which was approved by
the Board. There are ongoing discussions and awareness
held in the Company to address compliance and promote the
importance of maintaining the minimum standards of
Conduct expected by the Company.

The ATH Code of Corporate Governance mandates the
requirement for the Company to maintain an up to date and
effective Code of Conduct for the company.
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Annual Compliance Report on Corporate Governance

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited For the Financial Year Ended on 30 June 2024

@ Principle

07.
Register of Interests

08.
Respect the Rights of
Shareholders

gﬂ' Requirement

Conflict of Interest

Transactions with related
parties resulting in conflict of
interest are disclosed and a
register is maintained for the
purpose.

Communication with Shareholders

To design communication
strategy to promote effective
communication with shareholders
and encourage their participation.
Examples: Communication
through Annual Reports, Annual
General Meetings, or any other
means of electronic
communication.

Website

To create and maintain a
website of the listed entity to
communicate effectively with
shareholders and other
stakeholders. All matters of
importance to be updated
regularly on the website.

Compliance Status

[\N

There is a Conflict-of-Interest Policy (“COI Policy”) in place for
the Company.

Annual declaration of conflict of interest are done by
directors, executives and staff on an ongoing basis and
declarations are also done by directors in board meetings
subject to conflicting interests in decision making.

A register of interests is maintained by the Company in
accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance and the
(Ol Policy.

The Company issues market announcements of material
information, quarterly and six-monthly unaudited financials,
annual audited financials and Annual Report.

All Information released as market announcements are
publicised through the SPX website and the ATH website for
ongoing availability to shareholders.

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is organised for
every financial year, to allow the Board and executives to
present the financials and also provide an update of the
business to shareholders.

The AGM forums is open to all Shareholders and shareholders
are encouraged to attend and participate in discussions and
communicate directly with the Board and officers of the
Company.

ATH fosters and promotes effective communication with
shareholders and effective participation at General Meetings. The
Company continuously explores how best to take advantage of
technology to enhance shareholders communications and how
to use General Meetings to enhance a two-way communication.
Copies of the Annual Reports are made available to shareholders
at the AGM.

The revamped ATH website which was launched during the
FY 2023 Annual General Meeting is now online. Apart from
its new look, the Company website now features are more
user friendly and presents comprehensive information about
the ATH Group of companies.

It maintains an up-to-date supplement of official release of
information to the market. The website address is:
http://www.ath.com.fj/
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@ Principle

09.

Accountability and
Audit

%ﬂ' Requirement

Grievance Redressal Mechanism

To establish a Grievance
Redressal Mechanism for
Shareholders to address
shareholders complaints and
grievances.

Shareholders Complaints

To provide the number of
shareholders’ complaints
received and attended to during
the year. Provide reasons if any
complaint is unresolved or

unattended.

Corporate Sustainability

To adopt a business approach
that creates long term share-
holder value by embracing
opportunities, managing risks,
maximizing profits and
minimizing negative social
economic, and environmental
impacts.

Internal Audit

To appoint an internal auditor
or an alternative mechanism to
achieve the objectives of risk
management, control and
governance.

Compliance Status

A

The Code of Corporate Governance and Shareholder
Complaints and Grievance Policy are in place to address
grievance mechanisms for the Company.

The Policy addresses the types of complaints and steps taken
to file grievances and the resolution process in addressing
shareholder complaints. The grievance redress mechanism is
targeted to achieve and effective and efficient process in
addressing complaints.

The Policy is publicized on the Company website for the
information of all shareholders. A dedicated email address is
also provided for stakeholders to register their complaints
and grievances.

The shareholders can email their
complaints@ath.com.fj.

complaints  to

There was no shareholder complaints received during the
financial year.

Our approach to business is outlined in the Company’s vision,
mission and values statements as tabulated in our Annual
Report.

The Group is committed to continuously improving its
business practices to maximise positive and minimise
negative social, environmental and economic impacts and to
manage risk alongside increasing shareholder value. The
Board recognises the need to address pressing significant risks
that can impact the company’s long term value creation.

ATH is audited annually by an independent external auditor.
The ATH Group and subsidiaries accounts are prepared and
audited in compliance with IFRS standards.

The Company also has policies and procedures in place to
ensure that business activities are carried out as per best practices.

The ATH Board has added an internal audit position in the
organization structure and ATH will have an internal auditor
appointed in the coming year.
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@ Principle

10.
Risk Management

External Audit

To appoint an external auditor
who reports directly to the
Board Audit Committee.

Rotation of External Auditor

To appoint the external auditor for a
fixed term requiring senior partner
of the audit firm to rotate once in
every three or less financial years.

Audit Committee

To establish an Audit
Committee comprising of at
least three members of which
majority are independent and
Chair is not Chair of the Board.

Risk Management Policy

To establish a Risk Management
Policy to address risk oversight,
risk management and internal
control. The Policy to clearly
define the roles and responsi-
bilities of the Board, Audit
Committee, management and
internal audit functions.

Whistle Blower Policy

As part of the risk management
strategy, establish a Whistle
Blower Policy by creating a
mechanism of reporting
concerns of unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the listed
entity’s code of conduct or
ethics policy, SPX Rules or
Companies Act.

Compliance Status

A

External Auditors are appointed by the Shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting, and they report to the Audit, Risk
and Finance Committee.

The Company rotates its external audit partners every three
years or less and the external firm is not appointed for more
than five consecutive years.

As per the Company structure, the Company has an Audit,
Finance and Risk Committee which provides oversight of the
Company’s internal controls and operations, verifying and
safequarding the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting
to ensure that the shareholders are provided with transparent
financials of the Company. Management of risk at ATH and
oversight in any audit and finance issues.

The Committee is made of three (3) ATH Board members
and one of the three is also the Chair of the Committee (he
is not the Chairperson of the ATH Board)

A Risk Management Framework and Risk Appetite Statement
is now in place and is currently being implemented at ATH.
The Risk Management Framework provides the methodology
of identifying and managing of risks for the business and to
monitor the effectiveness of controls that are in place.

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee is tasked with the
responsibility of risk management and enhancing the
internal controls in the Company. The Committee also
reviews the annual financial statements to be released by
the Company, before submission to the Board.

A Whistle Blower policy has been developed and implemented
which provides a mechanism of reporting unethical, actual
dishonesty, fraudulent, corrupt or illegal behavior, violation of the
Company’s code of conduct.

The Company has not received any whistle blower complaints
this financial year and to manage whistle blower complaint in
future, it will be directly referred to the whistleblower team
(comprises of Risk and Human Resource staff and one ATH
director) for investigation and addressing of the issue.

The whistleblower policy is uploaded on the ATH website to
ensure that stakeholders are aware of the mechanism of raising
a whistleblower complaint. They can also email their issues to
Whistle-blower@ath.com.fj.
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We remain steadfast in our mission to empower
Fiji’s digital transformation with the introduction
of Artificial Intelligence technologies, enrich lives,
and create a brighter, more connected

future for all.



vodafone
Fij

Mr. Joweli Taoi - Chairperson

Ms. Fareen Saheb - CFO/Company Secretary
Mr. Isikeli Tikoduadua - Director

Mr. Viliame Vodonaivalu - Director

Mr. Attar Singh - Director

Mr. Robin Yarrow - Director

Mr. Ashnil Prasad - Director

Mr. Pradeep Lal - Regional CEO

Ms. Elenoa Biukoto - CEO

Overview
The year 2023 /24 marked a significant transformation in

Fiji's  telecommunications  landscape,  driven by
technological advancements, increased demand for
digital services, and the government's issuance of a
license to a global satellite provider. Vodafone Fiji, is
strategically adapting to these changes to maintain its
market leadership and drive growth through innovation
and  diversification.  Vodafone  Fiji's  performance
underscores its multifaceted strategies to sustain its
growth trajectory and continue to deliver on stakeholder
expectations in years ahead.

Vodafone Fiji maintained its leadership in the
telecommunications and ICT attributed to commitment to
customer satisfaction and continuous innovation. By
focusing on a customer-centric approach, the company
enhanced data and internet access capabilities and
offered globally reputable brands as part of its product
suite. This enabled Fijians to connect seamlessly, access
information, and engage in online activities. Additionally,
Vodafone Fiji introduced products and services to meet
the evolving needs of its customer base, which surpassed
900,000 users in the financial year, demonstrating the
company's dedication to serving Fijian communities and
bridging the digital divide.

Vodafone Fiji's commitment to innovation extends
beyond customer experience to include significant
investments in network development. Recognizing the
importance of robust infrastructure in the digital age,
Vodafone Fiji has built a strong foundation for reliable and
future-proof networks capable of handling increasing
data and connectivity demands. The company has also
conducted active user ftrials for 5G technology,
showcasing its dedication to remaining at the forefront of
technological advancements. By embracing 5G, Vodafone
Fiji is preparing for a new era of hyper-fast connectivity,
paving the way for future advancements and innovation.

Vodafone Fiji remains dedicated to delivering sustainable
growth and enhancing value for all stakeholders. With a
customer-centric approach, a commitment to continuous
innovation, and the strength of strategic partnerships,
Vodafone Fiji is well-positioned to navigate the evolving
digital landscape and maintain its leadership in the Fijian
telecommunications industry.
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Vodafone Fiji also achieved outstanding results for both
shareholders and customers, highlighting its keen market
understanding and ability to translate trends into profitable
ventures. A prime example of this innovation is the
continued growth of M-PAISA, Fiji's first-ever FINTECH
solution in partnership with Mastercard, which empowered
Fijians to participate in the global digital economy.
Recognizing the transformative power of digital inclusion,
Vodafone Fiji actively championed this cause.

The company's partnership with Mastercard for M-PAISA has
been instrumental in expanding financial access for Fijians,
particularly those in underserved areas. This initiative not
only empowered individuals but also fostered economic
growth by facilitating cashless transactions and promoting
financial literacy. By fostering a culture of innovation and
forging  strategic  partnerships, ~ Vodafone  Fiji  has
demonstrated its commitment to social responsibility and its
role in building a more inclusive digital future for Fiji.

Our Infrastructure

Vodafone Fiji remains committed to providing its customers
the best-in-class network technology and user experience.
Significant investments were made in the past year to keep
pace with the ever-growing demand for mobile data but also
staying abreast with the advancement in global network
technology.

A cornerstone of these efforts was the upgrade of capacity at

300 network sites across Fiji resulting in a tangible

improvement in data speeds through faster upload and
download speeds leading to a smoother and more enjoyable
online experience. Furthermore, Vodafone Fiji became the
first in the country to implement Voice over LTE (VoLTE). This
innovative technology utilizes the 4G network to deliver
crystal-clear voice calls, a significant leap forward from
traditional voice calling methods.
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A notable milestone for the year undoubtedly is the live
user testing of the 5G network. This revolutionary
technology boasts multi-gigabit per second (Gbps) peak
data speeds, ultra-low latency and massive network
capacity. These advancements pave the way for exciting
new possibilities like the Internet of Things (loT), smart
homes and cities and transformative applications in
education and healthcare.

Vodafone Fiji has conducted rigorous live 5G user trials in
selected locations. These trials have yielded exceptional
results, showcasing the true potential of 5G with its high
speeds, ultra-low latency, and enhanced connectivity.
This leap in performance promises to revolutionize the
way users interact with technology, enabling real-time
data processing, seamless video conferencing, and the
deployment of advanced loT solutions.

To support the complexities of the 5G network and the
anticipated surge in data traffic, Vodafone Fiji has
undertaken a comprehensive modernization effort. The
expansion and modernization of the Data Center and
Network Operating Center (NOC) ensures smooth
operation,  optimized  performance, and  robust
cybersecurity. Additionally, the implementation of IPv6, 3
future-proof addressing system that caters to the growing
demand for mobile connectivity and empowers
innovation in future 5G applications. To  seamlessly
integrate new technologies like VOLTE, 5G, and IPv6,
Vodafone Fiji upgraded its billing infrastructure to provide
more tailored products and plans for its customers.
Furthermore, new Content Delivery Networks (CDNs)
brings content closer to users, resulting in faster loading
times for popular platforms like Google, Facebook,
Netflix, and Microsoft.




By constantly innovating and investing in its network
infrastructure, Vodafone Fiji is ensuring that its customers
remain connected and empowered in the ever-evolving
digital world

In the corporate and enterprise market, Vodafone Business
remains the provider of choice for enterprise solutions. Over
the last three decades, it has partnered closely with its
business customers, helping them develop robust ICT
infrastructures that are critical to their operations. As we
move into the era of Industry 4.0, businesses increasingly
rely on telecommunications companies like Vodafone to
spearhead their digital transformations.

Vodafone Business has evolved into a comprehensive ICT
solutions provider through strategic partnerships and
collaborations with industry leaders. This evolution has
positioned us as a market leader, offering a wide array of
next-generation ICT products and services. We have made
significant  advancements in  delivering  cutting-edge
cybersecurity  solutions, next-gen cloud computing,
Software-Defined Networks (SDN), Internet of Things (loT)
solutions, unified communications, and managed services.
These offerings are essential drivers of digital transformation
in the business world.

Vodafone Fiji's user-centric approach has been key to our
success. We have significantly enhanced our data capabilities
to meet the growing demand for digital services, with total
data utilization increasing by 24% year-over-year.

As Vodafone Fiji prepares for the commercial launch of 5G, we
anticipate even greater outcomes that will further solidify
Vodafone Fiji's position as the leading telecommunications
provider in the country. Vodafone is diligently working to
ensure a smooth transition to 5G for all business clients,
promising a future of unparalleled connectivity and innovation

for Fiji.

Vodafone Fiji remains committed to empowering Fiji's digital
transformation, enriching lives, and creating a brighter, more
connected future for all. Our strategic focus on innovation,
and adaptability positions us for sustained growth.

In the area of Fintech and digital payments Vodafone Fiji's
M-PAISA has grown into fully-fledged digital financial
services platform offering a myriad of services.
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Our People Strategy

At Vodafone, we recognize our employees 3as our
greatest asset and the driving force behind our innovation
and success. We're committed to fostering a dynamic and
inclusive workplace where every team member feels
empowered to thrive.

Vodafone Fiji's people strateqy fuels our commitment to
delivering exceptional service to our customers. By
cultivating exceptional talent, we empower our team to
tackle challenges and deliver innovative digital solutions
that enhance connectivity and empower our communities.

Our recently introduced hybrid work model allows
employees to choose between in-office and
work-from-home options, fostering greater work-life
balance and productivity. This flexibility —enables
employees to deliver their best performance from
comfortable environments.

The company is dedicated to continuous learning and
development. By investing in training programs and
further study opportunities, we ensure employees
possess the required skills and knowledge to excel in our
rapidly evolving industry. We actively promote a culture
of collaboration, diversity, and well-being. The growth
opportunities and career advancement opportunities in
Fiji and other Pacific Islands operation attracts and retains
top talent, fostering creativity and driving excellence
across the organization.
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Financial Highlights

The financial year 2024 has been a remarkable period for
Vodafone Fiji. Throughout this year, Vodafone Fiji remained
steadfast in pursuing its objectives and targets, leading to
exceptional outcomes for both the company and its
stakeholders. The strategic investments made in infrastructure
and services, both in preceding years and the current year,
have vyielded positive results. Notably, there has been
significant growth in the net subscriber base compared to the
previous year, reflecting the company's unwavering
commitment to its goals.

The group's consolidated revenue is $480 million, as the
group companies continue to deliver positive results, leading
to a successful performance compared to last year. The focus
on diversification and growth of the businesses has ensured
that the business is risk and growth ready and ensuring
consistent returns to the shareholders.

Looking Ahead
Navigate through the dynamic telco industry,
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Vodafone remains steadfast in its commitment to delivering
continuous growth and enhancing long-term value for our
customers and shareholders. Vodafone Fiji continues to forge
ahead with remarkable successes, solidifying its position as
the leading connectivity provider in the country. Our
dedication to innovation, customer satisfaction, and the
pursuit of excellence drives our achievements across various
business verticals.

Digital connectivity is a significant priority for the
government, as it increasingly impacts the country’s
competitiveness and resilience.  Vodafone is firmly
committed to supporting the realization of these digital
ambitions. However, achieving this goal necessitates
substantial investment in digital infrastructure.

Our focus on building robust infrastructure is crucial to ensuring that Fiji
remains at the forefront of digital transformation.

The year 2024 has been a transformative period for Vodafone
Fiji, marked by significant advancements in telco infrastructure
and the successful implementation of our people strategy.
Embracing the future with optimism and ambition, Vodafone
Fiji remains dedicated to delivering innovative, reliable, and
customer-centric services. Qur ongoing investments in
people, technology, and partnerships are pivotal in shaping
Fiji's digital landscape.
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As Vodafone Fiji looks ahead, we remain steadfast in our
mission to empower Fiji‘s digital transformation with the
introduction of Artificial Intelligence technologies, enrich
lives, and create a brighter, more connected future for all.
By continually investing in our resources and maintaining
our commitment to excellence, Vodafone Fiji is poised to
lead the way in driving the nation’s digital progress
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Corporate Social Responsibility

At Vodafone, our commitment to corporate social
responsibility is an integral part of Vodafone Fiji's mission,
reflecting our commitment to ethical practices,
sustainable development, and community support. We
believe that our success goes hand in hand with the
well-being of the Fijian society and its environment.
Through these initiatives, we strive to make a positive
impact on society and the environment, ensuring
sustainable growth and inclusive progress for all.

This year, our passion for the environment took us to the
remote community of Kavula Village in the interior of Bua on
Vanua Levu, where we planted three hundred native trees
in line with the Fiji Government’s One Million Trees initiative.
By fostering a culture of sustainability, we aim to contribute
to a better future for all, ensuring that our growth benefits
both our customers and the broader community.

Community and Staff Involvement

At Vodafone Fiji, we believe that the strength of our
company lies in our deep connection to the communities
we serve and the dedication of our staff. Our strategy for
community and staff involvement is centred on fostering
meaningful relationships, driving positive change and
empowering our employees to make a difference.

The fundamental principle of our organization is still our
passion for our Vanua. With the efforts of its employees,
Vodafone Fiji expands its reach into local communities to
help. We are committed to being an active and responsible
member of the communities we operate in. Our community
involvement initiatives focus on enhancing digital
literacy, promoting sustainable practices and supporting
local development projects.

Throughout the company, we encourage our staff to
volunteer their time, skills, and expertise to initiatives
they are passionate about, letting our "Vodafone Spirit"
shine.



With our shared dedication to staff and community
participation ensures that we are not only offering
exceptional telecommunications services but also making a
positive impact to the communities we serve. We remain
dedicated to building stronger connections, both through our
technology and our collective efforts to make a positive
impact to our Vanua.

Women Empowerment

At Vodafone Fiji, we are committed to fostering an inclusive and
empowering workplace where women can thrive and lead. We
recognize that gender diversity is not only a matter of fairness
but also a driver of innovation and business success. Our
women empowerment strategy focuses on creating opportunities,
providing support and cultivating a culture of equality.

We actively promote gender balance in our management
and executive teams, ensuring that women have a voice in
decision-making processes. Our policies are designed to
support women at all stages of their careers. We offer
flexible work arrangements to help balance professional and
personal responsibilities. By fostering a supportive and
flexible work environment, we enable women to achieve
their full potential.

At Vodafone, we champion women empowerment, which
is not only enhancing our organizational strength but also
contributing to a more equitable and innovative
telecommunications industry.

Vodafone Fiji's commitment to women empowerment
through sports is reflected in our sponsorship of the Vodafone
Fijiana XV, and we remain dedicated to increasing the

participation of women and girls in sports. Through our
dedicated efforts, we aim to create a future where women
have equal opportunities to excel in sports, inspiring
confidence and leadership in every aspect of their lives.

Policies to Benefit the Environment

We are dedicated to minimizing our environmental
footprint  and  promoting  sustainability  through
comprehensive and proactive policies. Our commitment
to environmental stewardship is reflected in the efficient
use of energy and community and environmental
partnerships.

Our environmental policies are an integral part of our
mission to create a sustainable future. We are committed
to  continuously  improving our  environmental
performance and driving positive change for our planet.

sponsorships

Vodafone Fiji plays a vital role in society and is deeply
committed to making a meaningful impact through our
sponsorship initiatives. Our sponsorship commitment is
driven by a desire to support and uplift the communities
we serve, fostering growth, inclusivity, and innovation.

With all our sponsored endeavors, our aim is always to
enable and empower local communities and drive
positive change. “Together We Can” is Vodafone’s
commitment to the people and the Vanua.

Our sponsorships in this financial year have connected
communities through Carnivals, Sports, and Fashion.
These commitments are more than just a financial
contribution; they are a pledge to drive positive change
and make a lasting impact on society. We are proud to
support initiatives that empower individuals, strengthen
communities, and create a brighter, more connected
future for all.
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In this era of modern digitization, Datec Fiji plays
a crucial role in introducing innovative and
sustainable ICT products to ensure that Fiji

and the region remain aligned

with global advancements.
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Mr. Isikeli Tikoduadua - Chairman

Mr. Pradeep Lal - Director

Mr. Vinit Nand - Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Nivlesh Buttru - Chief Financial Officer/
Company Secretary

Overview

Datec Fiji has delivered yet another strong performance
for FY 23/24, establishing itself as the leading ICT
solutions and services provider in Fiji and the region,
thanks to the strong partnerships with global OEMs,
investment in our people and technology, our capabilities
and our customers. With over 39 years of experience, we
have successfully executed some of the largest ICT
projects in Fiji and the Pacific, supporting businesses and
customers in their digital transformation journeys.

Throughout the year, we conducted various customer
engagement activities to promote ICT trends and
innovations, including the highly successful Fiji Tech
Summit 2023. This event, which is one of the largest ICT
gatherings in the region, hosted 25 global solutions
providers and over 250 delegates, fostering an
environment of learning, collaboration and professional

development.

During the year, we expanded our footprint by
establishing Datec New Zealand Limited and acquiring
the assets of Fiji Directories Pte Limited, including the
Yellow Pages brand. These initiatives are essential for
diversifying our revenue streams. We also secured the
Prize Level award at the prestigious Fiji Business
Excellence Awards, underscoring our position as an
industry leader and affirming our capability to excel on a

global stage.

Datec Fiji also improved its Dell Titanium status and
maintained its Lenovo ISG partnership at the Platinum
level, achieving top-tier recognition for Lenovo
Infrastructure solutions. Our business operates under a
robust Quality Management Framework and holds 1SO
9001:2015 certification, which guarantees customers
peace of mind and consistently relaibel and dependable
services.
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Our People

At Datec Fiji, our people are the cornerstone of our ongoing
success. We prioritize people’s development, recognizing
their dedication, hard work, and commitment to our current
and future achievements. We invest continuously in our
employees through local and international training and
development, aligning with industry needs to prepare our
organization for the challenges of the digital age while
upskilling our workforce.

We are committed to creating a work environment that
attracts, develops, and retains top talent.

Financial Result

Datec Fiji remains the preferred supplier for government,
BFSI sectors, and large corporations, including MNCs
operating in the Pacific region. In the post-pandemic ers,
digital readiness has led many businesses to reassess their
infrastructure to support digitalization trends and stay
competitive with the latest technology. Datec Fiji has been a
catalyst in deploying new market trends, ensuring customers
invest in scalable and secure technology to foster
digitalization, innovation, and growth.

With a strong focus on digitalization, Datec Fiji exceeded
last year's turnover and surpassed budget expectations.
The company also outperformed in EBITDA, EBIT, and
NPAT. The current year's financial results, covering 12
months, are compared to the 15-month results from the
previous year.

Looking Ahead

In this era of modern digitization, Datec Fiji plays a crucial
role in introducing innovative and sustainable ICT
products to ensure that Fiji and the region remain aligned
with global advancements. Looking ahead, our strategic
focus includes several key areas such as enhancing our
cybersecurity  business to safequard clients from
emerging threats, expanding our training center to equip
professionals with advanced skills and certifications, and
extending our regional footprint to deliver our top-tier ICT
solutions across the Pacific. We are also committed to
strengthening and expanding our partnerships with
leading global technology providers to offer cutting-edge
solutions, and prioritizing employee retention to build a
supportive and dynamic work environment that attracts
and retains top talent. These initiatives are integral to
driving digital transformation, fostering innovation, and
sustaining growth for our clients and the region.

% ACHIEVED COMPARED TO 15 MONTHS RESULT LAST YEAR

4.09%
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Community Involvement

Datec Fiji is committed to making a positive impact on the
community through diverse Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) initiatives aimed at enhancing digital literacy,
promoting cybersecurity awareness, and supporting human
capital development. Our activities are designed to advance
digital readiness, ensuring individuals are well-equipped for
the challenges of the digital age.

Key initiatives include the ‘Think Before You Click’
cybersecurity awareness program, which educates primary
school students about digital safety in collaboration with the
Asco Motors foundation targeting ten schools to promote
responsible and safe navigation of the digital landscape.

We also empower women entrepreneurs through a two-day
Microsoft training program that equips participants with
essential digital skills to thrive in competitive business
environments. Datec has also partnered with global vendors
to offer complimentary refresher and technical boot camp
training sessions for IT professionals, focusing on emerging
ICT developments and enhancing product awareness.

Our Training Centre provided free Microsoft Office training for
school students during the holidays, aimed at improving
educational experiences and preparing them for future
workforce participation.

Datec continued its annual blood drive initiative on World
Blood Donor Day and maintained strong ties with the
education sector through student internships, a graduate
trainee program, and industry-based seminars, offering
valuable insights and career development opportunities.

Through these diverse initiatives, Datec Fiji aims to cultivate
a well-prepared and digitally literate community that can
thrive in a rapidly evolving technological landscape.

Women Empowerment

Datec Fiji is dedicated to empowering women and
promoting gender diversity in the ICT sector as a
committed equal opportunity employer. We proudly
participated in "Girls in ICT Day," where we inspired
young girls to explore career paths in technology and
waork towards bridging the gender gap in the industry. By
creating equal opportunities for women in education,
training, and careers within ICT, we aim to nurture skilled
female professionals who can meet the growing demand
for ICT expertise.

In alignment with our commitment to women's
empowerment, Datec partnered with a global vendor to
initiate Women in ICT forums, specifically designed to
encourage greater female participation in the ICT
industry. This gathering provided female ICT professionals
with a unique platform to network, share ideas, and
engage in meaningful discussions. By fostering an
environment of collaboration and support, the events
eandeavour to empower women and enhance their
involvement in the field.

Our initiatives challenge stereotypes and strengthen our
technical teams by actively recruiting and supporting
female talent. The exceptional performance of women
within our organization is a testament to their capabilities
and serves as an inspiration for others to explore careers
in ICT. We firmly believe that empowering women and
achieving gender equality is vital not only for the
sustainable development of Datec Fiji but also for the
broader community's advancement. Through these
efforts, we are committed to paving the way for more
women in the ICT industry.
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As we move forward, Digitec ICT is committed
to augmenting its strengths in cybersecurity,
hardware infrastructure, software, services,
solution, datacenter, cloud, and ISP services.
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DIGITEC DIGITEC

4
DIGIHEC

1T LIMITED
INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS

Mr. Joweli Taoi - Chairman

Mr. Attar Singh - Director

Mr. Pradeep Lal - Director

Mr. Satyen Singh - Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Lasith Bandara - Chief Financial Officer/
Company Secretary

Overview

At Digitec ICT and our associated companies, we are
driven by a relentless focus on customer-centricity and
customer obsession. Our mission is to assist our customers
in their digital transformation journey by providing the
best value and leveraging our expertise in System
Integration, Solutions, Value Added Distribution, Datacenter,
ISP, Retail, and Mobile business.

We work closely as a cohesive team with industry-leading
partners such as Dell Technologies, Forcepoint, Sophos,
Scale Computing, Laserfiche, PowerShield, and Ricoh to
create compelling value for our customers. Our strengths
lie in Server, Storage, Hyperconverged Infrastructure, and
Cyber-Security Solutions, where we are recognized as
leaders in the cyber-security space.

Digitec ICT Limited, together with ETech ICT Pty Limited
and ETech ICT Pte Limited, delivered yet another solid
performance for FY23-24. This year, we achieved significant
milestones, including:

Expansion of our Cyber-Security Solutions:

We fortified our position as leaders in the
cyber-security space by introducing advanced threat
detection and response solutions, ensuring our
clients’ data remains secure.

e Enhanced System Integration Capabilities:
We successfully integrated complex IT systems for
several high-profile clients, streamlining their
operations and boosting efficiency.

e Growth in Value Added Distribution:
Etech ICT expanded its distribution network, bringing
cutting-edge technology solutions to a broader
market.

e Datacenter Innovations:
We launched state-of-the-art datacenter solutions
that offer unparalleled reliability and scalability,
meeting the growing demands of our clients.

e ISP and Mobile Business Expansion:
Our ISP and mobile services saw substantial growth,
providing faster and more reliable connectivity to our
customers.
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e Partnership Achievements:
We maintained our Dell Technologies Titanium
partnership for three consecutive years, the highest
partnership level. For Forcepoint, we are Titanium
partners. In Sophos, we are the only Platinum
Partner in the South Pacific Island Countries and
ranked second in achievement for the entire region

of Oceania and ANZ. Additionally, we were
nominated as the top partner outside of the USA by
Scale Computing.

The Digitec ICT group of companies comprises Digitec ICT Ltd,
Etech ICT Pte Limited Singapore, and Etech ICT Pty Australia.
Digitec ICT Limited focuses on end-customer solutions, while
Etech specializes in value-added distribution. Together, we
are committed to delivering innovative and effective
solutions that drive success for our clients.

Financial Results

We measure our success by tracking key financial KPIs.
Despite facing logistics and forex-related challenges in PNG
throughout the year, the business proactively managed risks
and capitalized on opportunities.

Digitec ICT Limited Papua New Guinea

Digitec had an outstanding year, surpassing all financial KPISs
despite significant challenges such as political unrest, delays
to multiple IT projects, and ongoing forex and fuel crises. We
achieved impressive growth, with revenue increasing by
22% and EBIT by 39% when compared to last year. Addition-
ally, we maintained top partnership levels with our key OEM
vendors, expanded our customer base, and introduced new
products.

Etech ICT Pty Limited, Singapore

Etech Singapore closed the year, surpassing all financial KPIs,
achieving a 22% increase in revenue and a 13% growth in
EBITDA/EBIT when compared to last year. Additionally, Etech
maintained top partnership levels with our key OEM vendors
and introduced new products.

Etech ICT Pte Limited, Australia

Etech Australia navigated through a challenging year, marked
by the absence of large orders and delays due to foreign
currency challenges, transportation, and power issues in
PNG. Despite these obstacles, Etech Australia closed the year
with 87% of last year's revenue and met 85% of the EBIT
budget.
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Our Datacenter

Digitec ICT has built a state-of-the-art datacenter in PNG,
designed with no single point of failure and multiple
redundancies, including power backups and generators.
Our core infrastructure, developed in collaboration with
Dell, Sophos, Forcepoint, and PowerShield, ensures the
highest reliability and security. This modern facility, leads
the market by offering comprehensive IT outsourcing
solutions, including critical infrastructure, networking,
cyber-security, in-country cloud, co-location, and
connectivity options. We provide robust backup and
disaster recovery solutions, ensuring data sovereignty
and seamless recovery of virtualized applications and
data. Digitec ICT is committed to continuous investment
in our datacenter operations, maintaining the highest
industry standards to support PNG businesses in their
digital transformation journeys.

Service Center

At Digitec ICT, we strongly believe in service excellence.
Our Service Center staff are trained and certified by OEMs
to ensure we delight our customers with best in class
support. We align closely with our OEMs" warranty
policies, guaranteeing the best warranty services for
Digitec customers. We offer comprehensive Service Level
Agreements (SLAs) and ad-hoc break-fix services to meet
diverse customer needs. As technology evolves, we have
developed service packages that allow our customers to
focus on their core business while we manage their
technology back-end. This enables their technology staff
to concentrate on more strategic priorities. Our Service
Center provides a range of local services, including repair,
maintenance, engineering, and consulting for leading
brands such as Dell, Forcepoint, Sophos, Scale, Matrix,
PowerShield, Apple, Toshiba, Asus, Ricoh, and Samsung.
We also offer on-site support and backup services,
addressing hardware/software issues, troubleshooting,
cybersecurity concerns, and data migration.



Internet Service Provider

Our ISP business prioritizes quality over quantity. Our ISP
team collaborates closely with the core sales team to provide
customers  with  comprehensive  connectivity  solutions
integrated with advanced Information Technology services.
Customers seeking the best in connectivity and IT solutions
choose us for a single pane of management and superior
service.

Key Highlights:

e Reputation for Reliability:
Digitec is renowned for delivering consistent and
reliable services, backed by a strong reputation for
excellent support.

® Robust Infrastructure:
We own backhaul transmission infrastructure in Port
Moresby and partner with larger providers to deliver
internet services across PNG.

ICT Solutions Division

Digitec ICT Solutions division is dedicated to assisting customers
in Papua New Guinea on their digital transformation journey.
We provide comprehensive consultancy, hardware, software,
and services to help organizations achieve their goals. Our
end-to-end solutions encompass:

® End-User Computing:
Providing devices, software, and support to enhance
user productivity and experience.

e Enterprise Infrastructure:
Designing and implementing robust infrastructure
solutions, including servers, storage, and virtualization.

e Networking:
Offering advanced networking solutions to ensure
seamless connectivity and communication.

e Cybersecurity:
Implementing security measures to protect against
threats and ensure data integrity.

e Applications:
Developing and deploying custom applications tailored
to meet specific business needs.

We strive to enhance our customers’ productivity and deliver
greater value through our partnerships.

Vodafone Kiosks

As 3 Vodafone company, we are collaborating closely
with Vodafone to establish Vodafone Kiosks across Port
Moresby, and other provinces. Our goal is to bring
connectivity and devices closer to consumers. To achieve
the national digital transformation agenda, it is
imperative that we significantly enhance connectivity
and mobile phone coverage.

Value Added Distribution

Etech is a value-added distributor for Dell Technologies,
Ricoh, PowerShield, Scale Computing, and Adata. We
collaborate closely with these OEMs to support existing
resellers, recruit new ones, and generate new demand.
Our commitment extends to the Pacific Island countries
and the resellers in this region, ensuring they have access
to the best products and support.

Continuous Excellence

At Digitec ICT, we are committed to continuous
excellence by consistently investing in our human and
material resources to ensure they remain up-to-date and
relevant to evolving needs. As a values-based company,
we emphasize maintaining high standards and hold valid 150
9001, 1SO 27001, and 1SO/IEC 20000-1:2018 certifications.
These certifications demonstrate our commitment to
benchmarking our processes against leading ICT providers
in the industry. In the realm of cybersecurity, we have
upgraded to the I1SO 27001 certification, making us the
first ICT and ISP provider in Papua New Guinea to achieve
this standard.

Women Empowerment

At Digitec ICT, we believe in equal opportunity and
non-discrimination. We are committed to women
empowerment and have made significant strides in
promoting diversity and inclusion. Our efforts have resulted
in a 46:54 ratio of females to males in the organization. We
will continue to foster a culture of equality and respect, as
we know it directly impacts our company’s performance.

Looking Ahead

As we move forward, Digitec ICT is committed to
augmenting its strengths in cybersecurity, hardware
infrastructure, software, services, solution, datacenter,
cloud, and ISP services. By closely aligning with both
existing and new OEMs, we aim to bring the best
solutions to Papua New Guinea and the Pacific Island
countries. We are laying the groundwork to help our
customers embrace Al for growth and progress.
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vodafone
PNG

Mr. Dakshesh Patel - Chairman

Mr. Peter Chan - Director

Mr. Nirmal Singh - Director

Mr. Naibuka Saune - Director

Mr. Joweli Taoi - Director

Ms. Selesitina Reti - Director

Mr. Attar Singh - Director

Mr. Pradeep Lal - Regional CEO

Mr. Avindra Nand - Chief Financial Officer/
Company Secretary

Overview

Vodafone PNG entered its second year of operations after
launching in April 2022. During this period, the business
experienced remarkable growth in customer acquisition,
retention, and monetization, resulting in a significant
revenue growth when compared to the previous financial
year. Throughout the current financial year, we have
continued with the project rollout and network optimization
efforts, now extending coverage to all 22 provinces in
Papua New Guinea. These optimization efforts have
delivered a robust network, leading to a considerable
improvement in customer experience and retention.

We expanded our reach by engaging more recharge
distributors and dealers, enabling availability and
convenience for our customers. Vodafone's brand
presence saw a significant boost at key locations,
including retail outlets, roadshows, and dealer /distributor
engagements in densely populated areas across all
regions.

Our business remains focused on customers and people,
which is the core of our strategy. We continuously
monitor our network performance and customer outreach
programs, offering convenient, reliable and affordable
services to the wider community. We are driven by the
inspiration to ensure that the customer remains at the
center of everything we do.

And as we move forward, we will continue to embrace
new technologies to make operations more digital and
efficient,  thereby simplifying and improving the
customer’s journey and experience. We continuously
review and update our products and services as well as
our operating models to maintain innovative and
competitive offerings. Our technology experts monitor
developments and emerging trends and work with global
partners to capitalise on these opportunities. With the
aim of transforming the country, we remain committed
to connecting more Papua New Guineans than ever
before.
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Our Infrastructure

Vodafone PNG has strongly established its presence with
circa 800 sites covering all 22 provinces, with ongoing
infrastructure development to further enhance coverage. We
have four data centres located in major provinces and all our
sites are 4G+. To overcome geographical challenges and
expand coverage, we have implemented multiple levels of
redundancy using various backhaul technology solutions. This
approach ensures a robust and reliable network with
improved uptimes and customer experience.

Our People Strategy

We are making significant strides in our people strategy
initiatives, building on the foundation established in our
people’s pillar. 95% of our staff are locals and attracting
and maintaining an engaged workforce with the right
skills, capabilities, and experience is crucial for our
success. We recognize the challenges of integrating
diverse skill sets and have focused on developing a
strong, integrated culture to attract and retain the best
talent.

Earlier this year, we introduced new initiatives that
highlight our commitment to nurturing a workplace
environment that values continuous growth, fosters
strong leadership capabilities, recognizes and rewards
employee  contributions,  promotes  diversity and
inclusion, and supports employee well-being. This
commitment to empowering societies and connecting
the unconnected is what matters most and continues to
inspire our people everyday.
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Financial highlights . .
Throughout the financial year, there has been a significant Total Revenue (Kma MI|S)

upward trend in customer connections, which has driven

related revenue growth. Moving forward, our focus remains 300
on increasing our customer base and revenue to further
strengthen long-term sustainability and to grow return on 250
investment.
200
Mobile Connections
150
900 - 100
800
700 %0
600 0
500 2023 2024
400
300
200 Looking Ahead
100 The mobile phone penetration in Papua New Guinea
0 remains low when compared to neighbouring countries.

Historically, there have been many barriers to adoption,
and with our network-build project nearing completion,
we are well positioned to challenge the status quo. With
our never-before-seen deals and value, we continue to
stimulate the market and peak customer interest.
Vodafone’s entry into Papua New Guinea has been a
game changer and with our investment in the network,
channels, partners and long-term customer value
management, we are confident of delivering growth and
value for our shareholders.

2023 2024
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Telecom Fiji, leading the way in ICT innovation
in Fiji, we are committed to a future where
connectivity is seamless and digital
empowerment is widespread.




tFL

The World at your fingertips

Mr. Attar Singh - Chairman

Mr. Pravinesh Singh - Director

Mr. Vilash Chand - Director

Ms. Tanya Waqanika - Director

Mr. Peter Chan - Director

Mr. Adhish Naidu - Director

Mr. Charles Goundar - Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Samuela Vadei - Company Secretary

Overview

Telecom Fiji Limited, Fiji's leading ICT company, has
evolved over the past 100 years from providing basic
landline voice services to delivering comprehensive
end-to-end ICT solutions. As the owner and operator of
the country's backbone telecommunications network

infrastructure, Telecom  Fiji
connecting the nation.

plays a crucial role in

Financial year 2023 - 2024 has been a period of
significant growth for Telecom Fiji, driven by increased
tourism and consumer spending. Despite facing challenges
such as the “brain drain” resulting in losing many
employees to overseas markets, the company has made
substantial progress.

Telecom Fiji has focused on upgrading essential
telecommunications network infrastructure to enhance
customer experience. We have worked in collaboration
with relevant stakeholders to ensure that the ever-increasing
internet data demands are catered for and supporting
businesses as they embark on their digital transformation

journeys.

We maintain clear and focused on our strategic objectives
so that our business activities align with priority areas.
This has driven growth in connections and ICT solutions,
ensuring  continuous  value and returns to our
shareholders and stakeholders. Telecom Fiji remains
committed to its mission of advancing Fiji‘s ICT landscape
and providing superior services to its customers.

Expansion and Upgrade of
Telecommunications Infrastructure

During the year, Telecom Fiji made significant strides in
enhancing and expanding its telecommunications
infrastructure  to  support the nation’s  growing
connectivity needs. The completion of Phase 1 of the
Labasa-Savusavu Fibre project marked a major milestone.

In May 2024, a groundbreaking ceremony signaled the
commencement of Phase 2, constructing an optical fibre
network from Seagaqa to Savusavu. This fibre network
will connect into the high-capacity Savusavu (able
Landing Station (CLS) and extend it all the way to Labasa.
This project will also bolster the resilience of the
transmission network in the North, reducing the impact of
natural disasters on connectivity.
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Furthermore, Telecom Fiji provisioned a third fibre route at the
Vodafone Warabetia Datacenter. This addition enhances
network resiliency by providing redundancy, thereby minimizing
the risk of outages caused natural and man-made disasters.

Fibre-to-the-Home (FTTH) Rollout

Telecom Fiji persevered with its ambitious Fibre-to-the-Home
(FTTH) expansion program, bringing ultra-fast and rock-solid
reliable internet services to more Fijian households and
businesses. This year, the FTTH network reticulation extended
to several more suburbs, including Waimanu Road, Mead Road,
Rups Subdivision, Nasese Waters, Stirling Place, and Samabula.

Fibre to the Business Connectivity

We continue to advance our commitment to expanding Fibre
connectivity to corporate customers and government
ministries, aligned with the national ICT roadmap and driving
progress towards full digitization and business automation.

The Waimanu and Samabula business districts are the latest
areas to benefit from our high-speed, reliable Fibre network.

LTE 4G Core Network

Wireless 4G broadband demand continued its strong growth.
To cater for this, the 4G Core network and a number of cell sites
were upgraded resulting in improved 4G service experience.

Enhancement of Customer
Experience Service

Telecom Fiji emphasised focus on transforming our
customers” experiences by adopting the paradigm of First
Time Resolution (FTR). Key to this was the realignment of our
work processes to enable customer requirements to be

addressed and resolved at the first contact.

Digital Transformation - Enhancing
Organizational Efficiency with 0SS/BSS

Our digital transformation journey continues to drive us
towards new heights of organizational efficiency and
innovation. Last year, we successfully deployed a full
stack of 0SS/BSS (Operations Support Systems and
Business Support Systems) to re-cast the foundation for
our operational processes. This year, we've built upon that
foundation with a series of significant enhancements
designed to further streamline our workflows and
improve customer service.

Our People

Telecom Fiji reinforced its commitment to cultivating a
high-performance culture and investing in its workforce,
recognizing that our people are the cornerstone of our
success.

We continued to invest in our employees by providing
them with the necessary digital tools and launching
employee-focused initiatives designed to enhance their
performance. By fostering a supportive and innovative work
environment, Telecom Fiji remains dedicated to nurturing
talent and driving excellence across the organization.

Employee Training and Development

We recently had a cohort of trainee technicians graduate
from our Technical Training Centre. They underwent 12
months of intensive training, mastering essential field
engineering skills. We look forward to the contributions
and value they will bring to our team and the
telecommunications industry as a whole.

Financial Highlights

Revenue & Net Profit After Tax

$120, 000
$100, 000
$80, 000
$60, 000

$I- Il

$40, 000
FY 2020 FY 2021

($,000)

$20,000

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024
(15 months)

B Revenue B NPAT
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Growth remains a challenge for operators like Telecom Fiji
due to declining traditional voice revenue and the level of
competition in the market however, with the initiatives
stated above and with the enhancement in customer experience,
growth remains steady.

Our focus on delivery and execution of our strategic
objectives ensured our ability to adapt and respond to such
impacts on our business. Operating revenues increased by
5.7% while the expenses decreased by 6% resulting in a 2%
increase in Net Profit before Tax when compared to
12-month average of FY23.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Staff Wellness Program

This program focuses on the long-term sustainability of our
staff's health by incorporating reqular health screenings,
team walks, and weekly wellness activities across all
divisions.

Pinktober and Movember Initiatives

Telecom Fiji continued its commitment to cancer awareness
through its Pinktober and Movember initiatives, aligned with
the company's health and wellness program.

Frank Hilton Amazing Wheelbarrow Race
Telecom Fiji proudly continued its tradition of supporting the
Frank Hilton Organization's annual 'Amazing Wheelbarrow
Race' with sponsorship and active participation in the race,
demonstrating its commitment to children with disabilities.

"E':.’-‘“\'
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Community Service

Telecom Fiji is committed to supporting the community
through various initiatives, including sponsoring a young
athlete from Rampur College with essential gear to foster
growth and opportunities. The company also supports
rural schools like Lagalaga Primary School and Ratu
Latinara College by providing computers and printers to
bridge the digital divide and promote digital literacy.

Women Empowerment

Women play a crucial role in shaping the telecommunications
industry, and at Telecom Fiji, they make up 27% of our
workforce and hold 50% of senior management
positions, where key executive decisions are made.

Looking Ahead

Telecom Fiji, leading the way in ICT innovation in Fiji, we
are committed to a future where connectivity is seamless
and digital empowerment is widespread. Our mission for
the future revolves around three core principles:
expanding connectivity, driving digital transformation,
and prioritizing our people and customers.

We are focused on transforming the way we operate and
interact with our customers. By leveraging digital
technologies and initiatives, we will enhance operational
efficiency and revolutionize the customer experience. Our
goal is to remain adaptable to the ever-evolving expectations
of our customers, ensuring that we provide top-tier
services and support.
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bluesky

Mr. Joweli Taoi - Chairman

Mr. Julian Maher - Director

Mr. Ashnil Prasad - Director

Mr. Pradeep Lal - Director

Mr. Peter Chan - Director

Mr. Attar Singh - Director

Mr. Justin Tuiasosopo - Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Niroshi Rajamohan - Business Process
Manager/ Company Secretary

Overview

AST Telecom LLC, operating as Bluesky Communications,
celebrates 25 years of delivering advanced telecommunication
services to the people in the US Territory American
Samoa. Through its subsidiary ASE Inc., branded as
MoanaTV, AST also provides entertainment services to its
customers, and continues to strengthen its market
presence and leverage its business position to deliver
value to shareholders.

This year has been Challenging from fincial perspective,
however; AST introduced a completely new mobile
network, integrated systems and delivering 5G services.
This sets the foundation for a promising future. Despite
facing numerous challenges, AST has set a benchmark in
the region, demonstrating its commitment to delivering
cutting-edge  technology and  meeting  customer
expectations.

AST continues to hold a strong brand position, supported
by customer loyalty and a community that values the
Bluesky brand. Despite post-COVID challenges and
remoteness, AST's strategic initiatives and projects have
flourished, delivering yet another year of successful
results. This year, AST has received the largest U.S. Federal
development funding for the first time in its history,
signifying improved relations with key stakeholders, AST
secured a development grant for the expansion of its
broadband network from the local government of American
Samoa.

The Bluesky team remains dedicated to the company, its
customers and shareholders. As we commemorate our
25 years of dedicated service to the people of American
Samoa, AST continues to responsibly and diligently grow
its business and operations, striving to make a meaningful
difference to peoples’ lives.

Our Infrastructure

Our strategic investments in technology have consistently
driven growth for both the company and the territory.
The new infrastructure paves the way for the expansion
of Bluesky’s products and services and ensures our ability
to provide extended coverage, affordable and improved
high-speed broadband services throughout American
Samoa.
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We continue to maintain a strong and competitive positionin ~ Financial Highlights
the mobile prepaid market and solidify our lead in the fixed  Bluesky’s overall performance for FY2024 has declined
broadband and entertainment services sector. when compared to previous years. Major reduction was
noted with Federal projects which started pre-covid and
Our focus has always been to deliver consistent, high-quality  has now conluded. The revenue in FY23 also included the
connectivity to our customers, and we have delivered on our  grants revenue received for reap and repair projects. It
promise. The investment in advanced network technology  will also be worth noting that the country has seen a
means enhanced connectivity with faster data transfer  huge migration of loacals to mainland USA which is
speeds, marking significant improvements in customer  somewhat reducing the market size.
experience. We remain committed to our vision of advancing
technology for the better and a globally connected future
where innovation thrives, and communication are boundless.

Total Revenue
(in USD Million)

Our People

AST recognizes that people are at the heart of its existence
and its core values are defined to embrace and enhance the
existence of the company through a passionate, dedicated
and a talented pool of resources who respect, understand
and take care of the needs of stakeholders with commitment.
Bluesky employees are a family of united warm members
who collaborate effectively combining the diverse strengths
and skills of each other to attain company goals and celebrate 2021 2022 2023 2024
shared successes. A culture of continuous improvement and (15 months)
development is utmost priority for Bluesky to reach the fullest

potential of the Bluesky team. The work environment at Bluesky

has consistently achieved excellent results.

Revenue and Net Profit After Tax
(in USD Million)

Safety of the Bluesky team has always stayed as a first
priority and Bluesky follows OSHA standards. In the pursuit
for achieving shared company goals that create value for all

stakeholders, Bluesky management lead their team with 25.00
high levels of responsibility, accountability, integrity, passion
and care. 20.00

Our people are at the center of our existence, embracing core 15.00
values and beliefs that make up the company. We have

passionate, dedicated, and talented individuals and teams, 10.00
that effectively collaborate by bringing their differences,
combining their diverse strengths and skills to drive common 5.00

objectives. Bluesky champions a culture of continuous I
improvement and development to bring out the best in its - .

people. Safety remains a top priority with our adherence to 2021 2022 2023 2024
OSHA standards and we continue to forge ahead with  (50) (15 months)
responsibility, accountability, integrity, passion, and care.
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In accordance with a Letter of Undertaking with US regulatory
agencies, Bluesky replaced its 4G mobile network and with
new infrastructure and leveraged the opportunity to
implement 5G capability, we are confident to deliver
improved user experience and drive revenue growth.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The community of American Samoa has always been at the
heart of Bluesky’s corporate social responsibility efforts. We
operate with a strong focus on national security,
environmental protection, and societal considerations. As
part of its commitment to environmental preservation, we
partnered with Finafinau, an organization promoting youth
leadership in environmental advocacy and climate action. We
also support initiatives that enable students to participate in
the Native Youth Community Adaptation Leadership
Congress, which combats the detrimental effects of climate
change.

Bluesky consistently supports our communities through
sponsorships and partnerships with local communities and
government agencies, focusing on cultural, educational, and
technological advancements. The company prioritizes local
skill development through internships and job training, youth
empowerment, and supporting sports teams at international
events. As part of our social responsibility, we are committed
to preserving Samoan culture.

Community Involvement, Sponsorships,
Women and Youth Empowerment

Bluesky has contributed over US$100,000 through various
partnerships and sponsorships to empower and support the
community in navigating the evolving landscape of the
modern age. Committed to fostering local youth
development, we have significantly supported sports
initiatives, including the American Youth Football of Samoa,
Junior Prep Sports of American Samoa, American Samoa
Tennis Association’s Junior Tennis Team, American Samoa
Softball Association, American Samoa Jr. Golf Club, American
Samoa Volleyball  Clubs, American Samoa Rowers
Association, and American Samoa Basketball Association.

As a technology company, Bluesky consistently supports
STEM initiatives. We recently backed STEM programs for
seven local high schools and the Army JROTC Robotics
team, which competed in the 2023 VEX Robotics
Championship. We continue to award scholarships to
recognize the talents and accomplishments of high
school and community college students.

Collaborating with the local government, Bluesky
supports Youth Employment Programs and provides
on-the-job training for students majoring in business,
accounting, ICT, and engineering discplines. Beyond these
areas, Bluesky has contributed funds for developing a
new community playground in American Samoa,
demonstrating its commitment to the community’s
recreation and wellbeing. We value giving back to the
community and play a significant role in the growth of
students, women, youth, and the community at large.
This commitment is a fundamental aspect of our
existence.

Looking Ahead

Our journey is pinned on driving digital growth, bridging
the digital divide, and leveraging our technology to make
a difference to peoples’ lives in American Samoa. As the
company celebrates its 25th anniversary, we aim to
capitalize on our strengths, maintain our competitive
edge, and expand into new segments to drive growth,
deliver diverse capabilities and exceptional experiences
for our customers and stakeholders.
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SAMOA

Mr. Joweli Taoi - Chairman

Mr. Ashnil Prasad - Director

Mr. Tevaga Tagiilima - Director

Mr. Peter Chan - Director

Mr. Attar Singh - Director

Mr. Rana Bose - Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Anish Chandra - Chief Financial Officer/
Company Secretary

Overview

The past year has been transformative for our company and Samoa, with NPAT
increasing by 39% over the previous year. As the leading telecom services
provider in Samoa, we have expanded and enhanced our infrastructure,
ensuring robust and reliable connectivity for our customers. Our commitment to
excellence has positioned us at the forefront of Samoa’s digital transformation,
as we prepare to launch 5G before Commonwealth Heads of Government
Meeting (CHOGM) 2024 in October.

Our Infrastructure

Vodafone Samoa offers quad play services, including Mobile, Fixed Line,
Broadband, and IPTV services. We lead the market with our extensive fiber
infrastructure across the country and continue to upgrade our network
infrastructure to ensure a superior experience. Several capital expenditure projects
have been undertaken this year to upgrade our backend infrastructure and
enhance capacity. By expanding international bandwidth capacity, we remain the
only provider of international DRP connectivity via two submarine cables.

Our People

Vodafone Samoa has 158 staff, with over 98% locals, and 42% female
employees. The company is committed to upskilling its workforce through
local and international training programs and by sponsoring higher education
for its employees.

Financial Highlights

Revenues for this year grew by 3% when compared to the previous year, with
an EBITDA growth of 13% and NPAT growth of 39%. The EBITDA growth was
primarily driven by revenue growth initiatives and significant cost-saving and
efficiency measures implemented by management.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Vodafone’s corporate social responsibility initiatives focus on building a brand
image that resonates with Samoans both locally and abroad. Key areas of focus
include education, health, NGOs, and sports. We continued our partnership with
Lakapi Samoa to promote grassroots rugby and supported organizations like
SVSG, Goshen Trust, and the Samoa Cancer Society, to assist young children and
ongoing cancer patients.

Vodafone played a crucial role as an industry expert and key stakeholder in
assisting the Government of Samoa with preparations for the CHOGM in
October 2024. This event will host over 5,000 delegates and world leaders. We
developed the official website for CHOGM 2024, the official delegate registration
portal, and provide Wi-Fi connectivity at event venues.

Looking Ahead

With our investment in the network, particularly through new site development,
capacity upgrades, expansion and 5G, we are well positioned to drive growth and
improved customer experience.
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COOK ISLANDS

Mr. Michael Henry - Chairman

Mr Phillip Henderson - Executive Director/
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Rebecca Puni - Director

Mr. Joweli Taoi - Director

Mr. Ivan Fong - Director

Ms. Ana Inamata - Chief Financial Officer/
Company Secretary

Overview

Economic Context

As we move into 2024, the Cook Islands economy shows
strong signs of recovery and growth. GDP growth for
2023 was estimated at 14.5%, with a projected rate of
9.1% for 2024. This positive outlook is largely driven by a
rebound in the tourism sector, which remains the primary
economic driver for the country.

However, the economy faces challenges such as inflation,
expected to moderate to 2.3% in 2024, and external risks
like high global fuel prices and related impacts. These
factors necessitate ongoing economic reforms and
investments in infrastructure to sustain growth and
resilience.

Market Challenges

Starlink’s entry into the market caused significant loss in
the high-yield residential and certain business segments
of the broadband services market. This, coupled with
contracted international capacity with ACL on the
submarine cable, squeezed margins due to reduced
revenue. In response, negotiations with ACL were
renewed to address the impact of Starlink’s entry, which
impacted both Vodafone and ACL.

Strategic Initiatives

The Company continued to focus on cost reduction and
optimization in work practices to improve efficiency and
productivity. The GPON project was accelerated in
response to the Starlink impact, enabling Vodafone to
offer a viable high-speed, higher-quality broadband
service at a competitive price to Starlink. The company
completed the refresh of the Pa Enua Network, rolling out
4G to all islands. A key part of this project was providing
connectivity services to the Government; however,
contractual payments have been delayed, impacting the
budget achievement for the Pa Enua services.

Ongoing investment in the mabile service generated the
required ROI, and the company rolled various upgrades in
late 2023, in time for the Cook Islands hosting the PIFS
conference in November. An early move into providing
loT infrastructure two years ago has paid off, with To
Tatou Vai contracting Vodafone to provide smart water
meters and data collection services over our loT network.
The company has also agreed on a pilot with Te Aponga
Uira to trial smart power meters in late 2024
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Workforce and Governance

Despite the advent of competition and new market entrants,
the Company focused on growing its revenue, managing
costs, and introducing new services to stay ahead. Ensuring
that our teams remain engaged, motivated, passionate, and
healthy is crucial.

Our Infrastructure
Vodafone Cook Islands provides a comprehensive range of
telecommunications services, namely

e Mobile Network services
Broadband and Internet services.
PSTN (domestic and international)
IPTV
Data Centre hosting services.
Post Services
Mobile Wallet
I0T Network services
Technology retail

PSTN

PSTN services are connected over 12 populated islands
providing 100% national coverage with 140% penetration.
All of the PSTN exchanges have been refreshed with new
technology and converted to an all-IP architecture. Business
subscribers can now connect via traditional copper, SIP
peering or registration.

Broadband Network

On Rarotonga a MPLS Fibre backbone transport ring provides
transport and access services for business and Government
for B2B and P2P offering up to 100 Mbps bandwidth.

Two central GPON in Avarua and Aroa data centres support
FTTH expansion for customers on Rarotonga and a GPON
node in Aitutaki provides connectivity for customers in
Aitutaki

Broadband customers in the Avarua township have been
migrated from the copper network onto the GPON broadband.

Hosting Services

Major hotels and the central Government have been progressively
taking advantage of the efficiencies gained with outsourcing their
IT infrastructure or connectivity. The Avarua earth station was
converted to a data centre to host the Cook Islands Government
Hyperconverged Infrastructure.

We also deployed hosted PABX services for small to medium
businesses and onboarded seven customers in the last six months
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Mobile Network

The mobile network consists of 3G/4G RAN in Rarotonga
and the outer islands. We recently upgraded the network
to provide better throughputs and faster data speeds to
customers in Raratonga.

Domestic Satellite Network

The outer islands have recently had a major revamp of
their satellite connectivity in partnership with SES utilising
the new and innovative Mpower platform delivery
low-latency high throughput capacity to each of the
islands. This connectivity is the primary trunk service out
of the Aroa DC delivering broadband and mobile backhaul
to each island.

Moana TV

MoanaTV Services were upgraded during the year, which
allowed for an exceptionally low entry cost to the Cook
Islands.

10T Platform

An investment made several years ago in the establishment
of an island-wide network of LoORaWAN loT Gateways has
begun to yield significant returns. The Proof of Concept (PoC)
stage, conducted in collaboration with To Tatau Vai (Water
Authority), has successfully concluded. This has led to the
Water Authority's commitment to deploy Smart Water
Meters for enhanced network management and user billing.
Vodafone is entrusted with providing the comprehensive
end-to-end solution, encompassing data processing and
reporting. Additionally, the water metering initiative has
been extended to our Pa Enua and has garnered interest
from partners with a potential of offering this solution to
other Pacific Islands.

Fleet management has gained popularity, with customers
subscribing in 2023, bringing the total connections just
shy of 100 vehicles managed on our platform. A new PoC
is being developed in partnership with the Power Authority
to facilitate smart power metering for customer billing.
We have also conducted tests on LoRa loT Emergency
buttons and remote health monitoring devices and are
preparing to partner with private health entities in
Rarotonga for trials.

Our People

Vodafone Cook Islands has demonstrated its commitment
to the well-being and growth of its people through
conducting various development and training programs
during the vyear. This included three short term
attachments to the Vodafone Fiji office, Energise
Leadership Workshop and one-on-one coaching sessions
for the management team. LinkedIn Learning was also
accessed by a number of avid learners in various fields of

interest.



Financial Highlights

The start of the new financial year was the crystallization
of the recovery phase after Covid-19. More visitor
numbers were recorded as additional inbound flights were
reintroduced.

The Company generated NZDS31M in total revenue, slightly
below its pre-pandemic peak. Competitive pressure from
Starlink led to a decline of 12% in internet revenue and OTT
had an impact of 20% on conventional landline revenue
when compared to the previous year. Management strategized
effectively to focus to emerging services like IoT, promotions
and customer rewards, which resulted in a 17% increase in
revenues and this is expected to continue growing in the
next financial year.

EBITDA & NPAT
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N 2024 = 2023
(15 months)

Corporate Social Responsibility
Community Involvement

Vodafone Cook Islands is committed to enable our
people with technology through continued support of
events and initiatives in the community. Giving back to

the community through sponsorship and staff
community initiatives is a critical part of our
commitment and remains a priority for Vodafone. Some
of our key sponsorships and initiatives include the
following:

e Breast Cancer Foundation is an annual event on our
calendar and one the staff look forward to supporting
each year. One of the key initiatives is to encourage
our women to perform reqular checks for early
detection. Funds raised go to the Breast Cancer
Foundation to support our women in the Pa Enua to
travel to Rarotonga for annual breast scanning. This
year we did something different to encourage health
and fitness and organised a community ‘Aka Uka’
dance fitness event. Through supporting these
events, we see an increase in awareness and fellow
businesses joining in to support the community.

e Autism Cook Islands - holds annual events with the
popular Te Kara Run. Vodafone is a strong supporter
of this event and continues to provide monetary and
in-kind support to raise awareness and messaging
through our platforms.

e We assist numerous community events and sporting
organisations to keep our people connected and to
promote healthy lifestyle changes in the community
through sports and health with a strong emphasis on
supporting our people in the Pa Enua.

o Vodafone partners with the Ministry of Cultural
Development with events throughout the year in
ensuring our culture, language and identity continue
to grow with our youth and communities worldwide.

® Supporting education and youth development

through technology and the various programmes
and initiatives throughout the year.
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Employee Involvement

The Company continues to support and embrace internal and
external social activities and events where employees are
given the opportunity to take part which contributes to
maintaining our employee morale. Health and wellbeing are
an area that the company wholly supports staff involvement
with and over the year we've had an increasingly high
participation rate with staff taking part in the following
events:

® Social team activities such as Badminton, Business
House Golf, Squash and various social competitions

® Ffitness Health Challenges including TMS Health and
Aka'uka fitness have been popular with our teams.

Women Empowerment

Vodafone Cook Islands is an equal opportunity employer with
current staffing of 52% male & 48% female of which 40%
are in senior management roles. We strongly believe in
women empowerment and achieving gender equality to
ensure a3 sustainable development of not only the
organisation but, the nation as a whole. Affirmative steps
have been taken to make opportunities available in the
traditionally male dominated areas of the business,
such as IT and fixed networks.
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During the year, a female member of the IT, VAS department
attended a Women in Tech Workshop in Auckland. Her
primary role was to network with skilled developers and
identify talent who could collaborate with our team on
future projects. Several women are now transitioning to
tech careers to pursue new opportunities and personal
growth. The Company encourages local participation at
these events to inspire individuals to upskill and broaden
their professional connections.

International Women's Day theme this year is ‘Inspire
Inclusion' and is about celebrating the strength, creativity,
and leadership of our female colleagues. Together, we
create a workplace where everyone thrives. Fostering an
environment of respect, empowerment, and collaboration
every day is also crucial for progress.




Commitment to the Environment Giving back to the Community

Vodafone Cook Islands put in place initiatives to promote  The Company is dedicated to supporting events, projects
sustainable and environmentally friendly business practices  and causes that assist the country to prosper. As one of
to help contribute to reducing impact and reduce our waste  the large corporate sponsors in the country, we play an

footprint.

e Replacing, where proper, ICE vehicles with EVs with
40% of the fleet now EV;

® (Commissioned a 28KW solar array to supplement
power to the Aroa datacentre.

e C(ontinuing the push to be a paperless business -
digitising forms and promoting online self-care.

® Recycling and sorting of waste continues to be a
priority and has been an initiative for the nation.
Vodafone supports the initiative to reduce, reuse or
recycle waste products and is strongly practised in
the company.

® Participating in keeping our Cook Islands paradise
clean with community clean up initiatives around
Rarotonga which has been part of the health
initiatives the company supports.

L) Vodafene

instrumental role in supplying sponsorships in the areas
of health, education, sports, youth development, arts and
culture and tourism.

Looking Ahead

Despite our strong market position, we have re-strategized
to accelerate key projects and investments to mitigate risks
posed by new non-traditional telco entrants, which has
disrupted certain market segments. We are accelerating
our Fibre Broadband project and simplified our propositions
to deliver affordable options, more value and better
customer experience. We remain focused and continue to
invest in mobile technology to connect more people and
respond effectively to the ever increasing demand for
connectivity and data on the go.

| Customer Care
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We are dedicated to growth strategies in both
our consumer and enterprise markets,
introducing innovative ICT solutions to

meet evolving needs.
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Overview

The past year has been exceptionally challenging for
Vodafone Vanuatu, as the country faced multiple disruptions.
The impact of four major cyclones caused economic
turmoil, affecting agriculture, infrastructure and daily
operations. The political environment was equally
unstable, resulting in a referendum in May 2024 aimed at
restoring political stability.

Additionally, the grounding and subsequent liquidation of
the national airline had far-reaching consequences. This
event disrupted the economy and triggered a sharp
decline in the tourism industry.

Despite these formidable challenges, Vodafone Vanuatu
has remained resilient, continuing to provide essential
services and support to our customers. Our commitment
to innovation and community support has been unwavering,
as we navigate through these difficult times towards a
more stable and prosperous future.

VOdafO ne Our Infrastructure

Vodafone Vanuatu remains dedicated to providing exceptional

VANUATU connectivity  through ongoing investment in  our
infrastructure. Our strategic efforts have concentrated on
expanding coverage, improving network capabilities, and
integrating advanced technologies to maintain a smooth
customer experience despite the severe geographical
obstacles. With the increasing demand for data and
information services, we continue to expand capacity to
improve our network. This vyear, we successfully
increased capacity on six high-traffic sites in Port Vila,
enhanced our primary and secondary links to the
northern and southern islands and shoring up network
stability, We launched seven new commercial sites, and
upgraded 58 rural sites from 3G to 4G.

Mr. Attar Singh - Chairman Our fibre network covering urban and residential areas

Mr. Waisea Kamikamica - Director has been pivotal in advancing connectivity across

Mr. Ashnil Prasad - Director Vanuatu. Focused on inclusivity, we have extended the

Ms. Tanya Waganika - Director GPON network to major islands like Malekula and Santo,

Mr. Pradeep Lal - Director while also extending coverage to new residential zones

Ms. Ashnita Kumar - Director around Port Vila. The ongoing project will further expand

Mr. Thomas Bruce - Chief Executive Officer to additional residential areas in Port Vila and Santo in the

Mr. Ravendra Chand - Chief Financial Officer/ upcoming year, enhancing accessibility and reliability for
Company Secretary our customers.
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We are also upgrading our systems to deliver better customer  Financial Highlights

experiences. In our ongoing commitment to customer Despite challenges, Vodafone Vanuatu continues to
convenience through digital transformation, we launched  deliver growth Our successful acquisition strategies
e-SIM technology, increased the number of digital refill  resulted in 12% growth in our subscriber base.
channels, and continued to grow online recharge options.
These initiatives ensure that our customers have seamless and

modern options for staying connected. VG (T i [0
‘I —

We continue to collaborate closely with satellite suppliers to 1gg ggg

explore additional solutions. This year, we also launched direct 140' 000

SAT-to-Phone SMS in partnership with Lynk. We plan to 120' 000

expand this offering to include voice and data services in the 100' 000

coming year, further enhancing our connectivity options. 80, 000

With a focus on being the leader in digital services, we continue gg ggg

to drive innovation through our mobile payment service 20' 000

platform in collaboration with various stakeholders. We are !

proud to be the first to launch outward remittance service and 2023 2024

our goal is to further expand our presence by integrating with

major banks and enhancing the seamless experience for our

customers. While global inflation and multiple cyclones impacted

operating costs of the business, our strong growth helped
These infrastructure developments underscore Vodafone  sustain the increased costs.

Vanuatu’s dedication to offering cutting-edge solutions. As we
continue to expand, upgrade, and innovate, our infrastructure
remains the foundation upon which we build a connected Turnover mil FJB
future for Vanuatu.

85.0 -
Our People 80.0
Our employees are our valuable assets that drive our success. 75.0
We take immense pride in our workforce, which consists of 70.0
97% local talent, of which 38% are female. Our approach is 65.0
centered on an equal-opportunity, collaborative work 60.0
environment that promotes working together through 55.0
cross-functional partnerships, enabling the team to drive 50.0
projects forward collectively and efficiently. 2023 2024
(15 months)
We also completed a refresher on our values and purpose,
and alignment to the Vodafone Way of working. We are
pursuing ISO certification to further enhance our operational
standards and commitment to excellence. Turnover grew by 4% when compared prior year.
We continued with our efforts on capacity building and
upskilling as we firmly believe in empowering individuals to EBITDA mil FJD
excel and take on pivotal roles. As the technological

landscape evolves rapidly, we ensure our employees stay at 28.0
the forefront by engaging them in educational workshops

and training. This year, we initiated exchange programs for 23.0
our technical team, including deployments to PNG. We also 18.0
welcomed visits from the regional team, who shared

: i } ) 13.0
business ideas, goals, and learnings from other regions,
fostering a collaborative environment for mutual growth. 8.0
3.0
As we look ahead, our commitment to our people remains 2023 2024
unwavering. We are steadfast in our belief that a motivated, (15 months)

skilled, and empowered workforce will drive Vodafone
Vanuatu's success
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The Turnover growth along with measures to improve
efficiency within the organisation has seen EBITDA and NPAT
grow by 14% and 36% respectively.

NPAT mil FJD

9.0 ~
8.0
7.0
6.0
5.0
4.0
3.0
2.0
1.0

2023
(15 months)

2024

Looking Ahead

As we look to the future, our focus is on driving digital
transformation and investing in technologies that elevate the
customer experience. We are committed to building and
embedding the Vodafone Way into every aspect of our daily
work life, fostering a culture of speed, simplicity, and trust

Our workforce remains a key priority, with ongoing efforts in
capacity building and training to empower and upskill our
employees.

We are dedicated to growth strategies in both our consumer
and enterprise markets, introducing innovative ICT solutions
to meet evolving needs. Additionally, we aim to expand our
mobile money system, enhancing financial inclusion and
convenience for our customers.

Moreover, we continue to prioritize building collaborations
and partnerships with our communities and businesses,
strengthening our ties and contributing to sustainable
development across Vanuatu.

By continuing to prioritize these areas, we are confident in
our ability to deliver exceptional value and service, driving
Vodafone Vanuatu’s success in the years to come.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Community Involvement

As part of its corporate social responsibility, Vodafone
Vanuatu continues to play a key role in supporting sports,
music, education and community building through our events
and partnership.

We have actively engaged in various community initiatives
throughout the year. This includes organizing the highly
successful Vodafone Christmas Carol events in four locations
across Vanuatu, which drew the largest audience to date. We
also participated in Chiefs Day celebrations, reinforcing our
support for local traditions and leadership.

Furthermore, we launched our new Vodafone shop for
Penama province together with launching for the first
time, a Vodafone Penama Volleyball Mix Tournament on
Ambae Island, promoting gender equality in sports. This
initiative was highly successful in fostering community
participation and promoting inclusivity. Additionally,
during the festive season, we visited the children's ward
at Tanna Hospital, bringing joy and support to young
patients and their families.

These initiatives reflect our dedication to making a
positive impact in the communities we serve, fostering
connections, and contributing to local well-being.

On the Musical front, Vodafone Vanuatu has continued to
support the annual Music Festival, the ‘Fest Napuan'.

Woman Empowerment

We are proud to champion gender diversity and equality
at Vodafone Vanuatu, where women play a pivotal role in
leadership positions such as Head of Legal, Head of
Human resources, Finance Manager and Chief Commercial
officer. 33% of our managers are women from Vanuatu.

Strengthening Brand Through
Sponsorships

Sponsorship is a vital avenue through which we actively
engage with our community, support local initiatives and
contribute to the betterment of society. We have
ventured into major partnerships showing our support for
sports, music, community development initiatives and art
& culture.

This year, we continued our sponsorship efforts by
supporting the Port Vila Football Association, Vanuatu
Rugby Association, and Vanuatu Volleyball Association.
Additionally, we sponsored ICT Days, where we won
three awards: Excellent Booth Display of the Year and two
product pitch awards.

Through these sponsorships, Vodafone Vanuatu remains
dedicated to fostering community engagement and
supporting initiatives that enhance the cultural, sporting,
and technological landscape of Vanuatu.
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vodafone
KIRIBATI

Mr. Joweli Taoi - Chairman

Mr. Attar Singh - Director

Mr. Ivan Fong - Director

Ms. Tanya Waganika - Director

Mr. Shalvin Singh - Chief Executive Officer
/ Company Secretary

Overview

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings (Kiribati) Limited,
trading as Vodafone Kiribati, continues to lead the mobile
communication sector in Kiribati, offering comprehensive
and cost-effective mobile, fixed, and data services
through its extensive 2G, 3G, 4G, and 4G+ networks. The
Company  achievedhas  shown strong financial
performance and significant progress in upgrading its
network infrastructure over the past year. By embracing
the latest technological advancements, Vodafone Kiribati
has revitalized the telecommunications market and
enhanced customer experiences across the nation.
Additionally, the Company is committed to investing in its
workforce and supporting the local community.

During the vyear, Vodafone Kiribati was honored with
the 'Best telecommunication Provider' award at the
Kiribati National Business Awards 2023, reflecting its
excellence in performance and contributions to the
telecommunications sector.

Our Infrastructure

Vodafone Kiribati focused on improving the efficiency of
network operations and enhancing network performance.
The Company continued to invest in its network
enhancements, including core power upgrades and
battery/solar upgrades in the outer islands. Additionally,
advanced technological solutions were implemented in
radio and core networks to improve overall network
performance in Kiribati.

At the beginning of the fiscal year, Vodafone Kiribati
operated 34 sites across 16 islands, with a population
penetration of 67%. During the year, five new sites were
commissioned: three in the outer islands and two on the
mainland. This expansion has significantly enhanced
network coverage and reliability, ensuring better
connectivity for our customers.

As 3 satellite-based telecommunications operator,
Vodafone Kiribati continues to adopt and implement new
technologies in the market. This commitment to innovation
and modernization helps us provide reliable and
high-quality services to our customers, even in the most
remote areas of Kiribati.
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Our People

At Vodafone Kiribati, we believe that our people are the
cornerstone of the Company’s success. Our employees'
performance, well-being, and knowledge profoundly impact
brand desirability, customer satisfaction, and financial
performance. Recognizing this, we prioritize equipping our
staff with the necessary skills through comprehensive
training programs tailored to their needs. This commitment
extends beyond routine in-house training sessions; we
actively encourage and facilitate our employees' participation
in external training and educational opportunities abroad.
This dual approach ensures our team stays abreast of the
latest industry advancements, enhancing their professional
growth and enabling them to deliver exceptional service to
our customers.

Majority of our workforce comprises of long-serving
employees who bring a wealth of experience and deep-seated
knowledge of the telecommunications sector. Their extensive
tenure with the company is a testament to our supportive
and growth-oriented work environment. This experienced
team plays a pivotal role in maintaining our high service
standards and operational efficiency, ensuring that Vodafone
Kiribati continues to lead the market. We hold a strong
female representation of 51% in the company.We are an
equal opportunity employer. We respect everyone and treat
everyone with dignity.

Financial Highlight

Vodafone Kiribati's financial performance is a testament to
our commitment to growth, innovation, and resilience.
Despite the challenges faced during the vyear, including
economic fluctuations and operational hurdles, Vodafone
Kiribati has demonstrated financial resilience. The company's
ability to adapt and implement effective strategies has been
key to maintaining financial stability.

Our successful customer acquisition strategies has led to
3 33% growth in our subscriber base. This growth was
driven by extensive connection drives and the
introduction of competitive offers tailored to meet the
needs of both prepaid and business customers.

Subscriber Base

10 -
8

6 4

x10, 000 (AUD)

2024 2023
m 2024 w2023

Despite facing significant challenges due to the introduction
of competition in the market, particularly from
StarlinkVodafone Kiribati has focused on enhancing
service quality, expanding coverage, and offering value
to retain customers and our market position.

Turnover grew by 4% from the prior year (12 months)
enhancing our market share and solidifying our position
as a leading telecommunications provider in Kiribati.

Turnover
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Welcome to Vodafone Kiribati
- Where are we located?

Net Profit After Tax
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Looking Ahead

Vodafone Kiribati's strategy for the future includes continuous
investment in network infrastructure. In response to the
growing demand for data, we plan to upgrade capacity and
expand coverage to outer islands.

We look forward to a significant development on the horizon,
which is the arrival of the EMC subsea fiber cable in October
2025. This will be a game-changer for telecommunications in
Kiribati, enhancing bandwidth capacity and connectivity
speeds. The submarine cable is expected to provide a
cost-effective, stable and faster internet speeds, supporting
the digital needs of businesses and consumers.

These strategic initiatives underscore Vodafone Kiribati's
commitment to innovation and excellence, ensuring it
remains a leader in the telecommunications industry while
fostering a digitally inclusive future for Kiribati.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Vodafone Kiribati is committed to conduct business in a
socially, economically, environmentally responsible and
sustainable manner. We continue to holistically implement
processes where corporate social responsibility and social
impact are integrated across the business.

Woman Empowerment

We are proud to report that 51% of our staff are I-Kiribati
women, reflecting our dedication to gender equality in the
waorkplace. We believe that empowering women leads to
stronger communities and better business outcomes. Our
initiatives advocate for gender equality by providing equal
opportunities for career growth, leadership development,
and skill enhancement. Through targeted training programs,

mentorship opportunities, and supportive workplace
policies, we aim to create an inclusive environment
where women can thrive and contribute significantly to
our success. By championing women'’s empowerment,
Vodafone Kiribati not only supports the professional
development of I-Kiribati women but also sets a standard
for gender equality in the telecommunications industry
and beyond. This commitment underscores our belief that
diversity and inclusion drive innovation and organizational
excellence.

Strengthening Brand Through
Sponsorship

Vodafone Kiribati has directed its support and
contributions towards various Government Ministries,
State-Owned Enterprises, Non-Profit Organizations, and
small community-based groups. These contributions are
made through data connectivity, A2P SMS services, and
donations, all aligning with our core values and mission.

During the year, Vodafone Kiribati sponsored and
supported the Miss Kiribati Beauty Pagaent, which was a
significant success. Our sponsorship not only highlighted
the beauty and talent of the contestants but also
promoted cultural heritage and community spirit. This
event provided a platform for young women to showcase
their skills and ambitions, aligning with our commitment
to gender equality and empowerment.

Additionally, Vodafone Kiribati was a major partner with
the Kiribati Island Football Federation (KIFF) for local
soccer events. Our partnership with KIFF played a crucial
role in promoting sports and healthy lifestyles within the
community. By supporting local soccer events, we helped
foster teamwork, discipline, and community engagement
among the youth and sports enthusiasts in Kiribati.

These initiatives demonstrate Vodafone Kiribati's
dedication to supporting and uplifting the local community,
reinforcing our role as a responsible corporate citizen
committed to the well-being and development of Kiribati.
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N Fintel

BEYOND THE CALL

Mr Attar Singh - Chairman

Mr Pravinesh Singh - Director

Mr Viliame V Baleitavua - Director

Mr Vilash Chand - Director

Mr George Samisoni - Chief Executive Officer
& Company Secretary.

Overview

Today's globalised world thrives on the transmission of
data. From financial transactions to social media posts,
the vast majority of international communications is
transmitted by subsea telecommunication cables.

Demand for new Submarine Cable capacity is being
driven by seemingly unending double-digit annual
growth in data traffic.

Transmitting about 99% of the world’s telecommunications,
submarine cables have emerged as critical infrastructure
necessary for systems to function.

Investment in new submarine cables has surged in recent
years. New cable investment has averaged over $2
billion per year in the past eight years. With demand
continuing to rise at an exponential rate, the value of
new submarine cables entering service from 2024-2026
is forecasted to reach over $10 billion.

The need for subsea network resiliency cannot be
overemphasized when it comes to either moving huge
amounts of data over transoceanic distances or ensuring
the connectivity of a small community to the rest of the
world. With the increasing dependence of our modern
societies on digital services, diversity for international
connectivity has become a requirement of the utmost
importance.

In March this year, three cables in the Red Sea were
severed by an anchor drag followed by the West African
subsea cable outage where four cable systems were
damaged by an undersea canyon avalanche incident.
While these incidents led to widespread connectivity
disruption, affecting at least 11 countries across the
continent, they also demonstrated the need for robust
redundancy measures to manage outages.

The impact of events like cable cuts highlights the need
for a coordinated, multilateral approach to protecting
shared infrastructure across multi-stakeholders. There is
an increasing urgency to discuss the set-up of global and
regional frameworks for joint monitoring, risk mitigation,
and emergency response procedures for the submarine
cables. By securing such telecom infrastructure, we can
attract more investment, spur economic growth, and
enhance competitiveness at the global stage.
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As such, submarine cables are a vital component of a
country’s national infrastructure and many governments
have declared subsea cables strategic national assets.
Subsea cables remain the primary method of transporting
internet traffic because of their speed, capacity and security.

The commercial landscape is changing, too. Whereas most
cables are owned by telecommunications companies,
businesses such as Google, Microsoft, Amazon and Meta
have also started to invest in this industry. As of 2023,
content and cloud networks accounted for more than 70% of
all bandwidth usage.

Data is shaping into the currency of the 21st century. As
global demand for data continues to grow at an extraordinary
rate, a changing geopolitical climate and increased focus on
cybersecurity and national security concerns, including
ownership of critical infrastructure, will continue to impact
submarine cable transactions and developments in the
coming years.

Our Infrastructure
FINTEL's Vatuwagqa Communications Centre, is Fiji's only
International Telecommunication Gateway.

FINTEL's investment of $46 million in the Southern Cross Next
(SX Next) subsea cable system extends Fiji's international
connectivity to 2050.

The investment will continue to progressively provide
cheaper and high speed international backbone capacity for
development of the Internet in Fiji and the Pacific region.

Given Fiji’s strategic location at the heart of the South Pacific,
Fintel is the transit point of choice for other Pacific Island
countries.

Tonga, Samoa, Vanuatu, New Caledonia, French Polynesia,
American Samoa, Cook Islands, Niue, Kiribati, Tokelau and
Wallis & Futuna, gain direct or indirect international
connectivity through Fintel.

Satellite communication is transforming connectivity across
the Pacific region by bridging geographical barriers and
connecting diverse communities. The expansion of satellite
coverage has allowed previously isolated islands to share
information instantly, bringing essential resources and
opportunities to remote areas.
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The cost of satellite services is decreasing, making it
accessible to smaller organizations and consumers.
Satellites also facilitate regional cooperation, offer
support in times of disasters, and foster connections
between isolated communities.

There is a surge in interests from the non-geostationary
satellite operators (NGSO) in the Pacific.

FINTEL's positioning as the telecommunications hub of
the Pacific has seen the establishment of gateways for
two Low earth Orbit (LEO) satellite operators, Starlink and
OneWeb.

Our People

FINTEL has a staff complement of 29. Thirty five percent
of the staff are female, spread out through the Corporate
and Human Resource, Finance and Risk, Commercial,
Sales and Marketing and Network and Technology
departments.

The FINTEL Sports and Social club and the Labour
Management Consultative Committee are the main arms
that keep staff and families and friends bonded through
sports, social work, religious festivals, national and
company events.

Corporate social responsibilities include sponsorship of
charitable events for the marginalised, handicapped and
the elderly and the minor sports.

The support for the minor sports is for the push to be
included in regional sports like the South Pacific Games,
to add to Fiji's potential medal opportunities.

FINTEL annually supports the nurturing and grooming of
local musicians in partnership with the Fiji Performing
Rights Association (FIPRA).

As a contribution to the awareness and conservation of
the environment, mangrove planting by staff and families
is carried out at the Fintel, Vatuwaqa Gateway foreshore.



Financial Highlights

FINTEL recorded a Profit after Tax of $3.8 million
(52.8M: 2023) during the year.
Dividend of $3.0 million ($2.2 million: 2023) was paid to the

shareholder

FINTEL's substantial investment in the new Southern Cross
Next subsea cable will be a major financial challenge in the
fully derequlated Fijian market and the continuing impact of
the Fijian Competition & Consumer Commission (FCCC)
Determination on International and regional access.

The current Southern Cross Now cable system is due for
replacement in 2030. An investment commitment of around
USDS20M may be required by 2026.

Fiji, through FINTEL, has had a single international
telecommunications gateway for well over a century.

The FCCC ruling may be inhibiting the national carriers from
pursuing other international subsea cable access.

International access resilience, as from the Tonga, and the
recent Middle East and Africa subsea cable outage
experiences, is critical for the national economy.

Requlatory and gateway market threats are forecasted to
continue which may require FINTEL to review investments to
current and future subsea cable and satellite systems.

Looking Ahead

FINTEL's network development activities continue to focus on
the enhancement of its core, Tele-housing and Co-location
services at FINTEL's Vatuwagqa Communications Centre, in
providing efficient and effective services to the domestic,
regional and international corporate clients.

The direct and indirect interconnection with regional and
global subsea cable systems, the partnership with global
satellite operators and the associated value added services
will provide the future delivery of key business objectives.

The future of satellite communication in the Pacific region is
promising. Expanded connectivity, new applications, private
sector growth, and cross-border collaboration are anticipated.
The technology is set to bridge digital divides, foster
innovation, and improve lives, building a more connected
and enriched Pacific Island society.

The proliferation of Low Earth Orbit (LEO) satellites has
caused a sea change in a sector which has long been
dominated by geostationary orbit (GSO) providers.

Major new players like Starlink, OneWeb and Amazon’s
Kuiper have entered the sector.

While LEO is unlikely to replace GSO, it offers benefits in
terms of coverage availability and quality of service. It is
also now affordable to launch LEQ satellites and the low
latency that they offer makes them suitable and
commercially viable for advanced communications
services, particularly in remote and unserved areas.

This makes the technology especially well-suited to
emerging markets, where fixed satellite access is helping
to bridge the digital divide. LEO is also driving new use
cases such as direct to mobile and loT devices, as well as
enabling satellite backhaul for 4G and 5G. Due to their
low latency and high bandwidth, LEO satellites are also
able to provide services comparable to 5G or fibre,
making them ideal for mission-critical communications
such as defence or disaster relief and advanced
broadband for enterprise applications across business
verticals such as shipping, aviation, and mining.

Subsea cable and satellite will continue to be
complimentary mediums for the Pacific Islands. Both
empower communities by providing access to
information and services that improve education,
healthcare, agriculture, and more, unlocking new
possibilities for progress and development.

Fintel will continue play a key role in attracting global
players in both subsea cables and satellite, for the benefit
of Fiji and the Pacific Islands..
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The Vodafone ATH Fiji Foundation remains
committed to providing ongoing support to
a variety of initiatives, projects, and charities
hroughout Fiji and the wider Pacific region.
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Introduction

Incorporated as a registered charity organisation in
2004, the Vodafone ATH Fiji Foundation was established
to lead the corporate social responsibility initiatives of
Vodafone Fiji and Amalgamated Telecom Holdings,
ensuring a positive social and philanthropic impact on
communities. With a mission to foster philanthropy and
address critical community needs, the Foundation
leverages mobile communication technology to tackle

Fiji’'s most pressing humanitarian challenges.

This commitment aligns with its vision of building a
stronger, more resilient, and interconnected Vanua.
Stakeholders and shareholders can take pride in
supporting a foundation that drives social change
through innovation and compassion, improving
countless Fijian lives.

Vodafone
ATH Fijl Key Highlights
Foundation As the philanthropic arm of Vodafone Fiji Limited and

ATH, the Vodafone ATH Fiji Foundation celebrates 20
years of impactful giving, dedicated to sustainable social
impact and community development across Fiji. Since
its inception, the Foundation has supported over 2,000
charitable organizations, contributing $50 million to
initiatives in healthcare, education, income generation,
environmental sustainability, and disaster response.

Partnering with 800 villages and 400 schools, the
Foundation has provided $12 million in direct grants and
introduced transformative programs like Vodafone
World of Difference and Maobile for Good, benefiting
over 120,000 communities.

As it embarks on a new phase of strategic expansion,
the Foundation is documenting its processes and
lessons learned to share knowledge with other Pacific

organizations, ensuring its legacy of impact extends
Mr Lionel D S Yee - Chairman beyond Fiji.

Mr. Ivan Fong - Trustee

Mr Adriu Vakarau - Trustee

Mr Deepak Baran - Trustee

Mr Rajnesh Prasad - Trustee

Ms Manarusa Vanabale - Trustee

Ms Ambalika Devi - Foundation Executive
& Company Secretary

ATH ANNUAL REPORT 2024 ‘ 67



Sustainable Funding & Mobile for Good

This year, the Vodafone ATH Fiji Foundation significantly
advanced its commitment to education, healthcare, community
well-being, and climate resilience, driving sustainable
development across Fiji. Key initiatives included upgrading
educational facilities at Nausori Village Kindergarten, Wairuku
Primary School, and Bayly Memorial School, aimed at
enhancing learning opportunities for children. In healthcare,
projects like the Kaleli Village Dispensary Income Generation
Project and the "Sounds of Freedom" movie event raised
awareness about healthcare access and human trafficking.

The Gonedau Project Fisher Folk promoted sustainable
fishing practices and economic stability. Collaborative efforts
with LifeLine Fiji on World Suicide Prevention Day and the
"Sleep Rough" initiative highlighted support for vulnerable
populations. In partnership with Rotary Pacific Water for Life
and the European Union, the Foundation co-financed climate
change and water security workshops and concluded the
(RCC Project, emphasizing environmental sustainability,
water security, and disaster risk reduction.

The Foundations proactive efforts included grants to the
Ahava Foundation, Aruka Foundation, and the AlLevi8
Network, supporting over 240 street dwellers through
capacity building, training, and job placement initiatives.
Additionally, the distribution of 2,000 dictionaries, school
bags, and dignity packs to schools and communities in Ba,
Tavua, and Rakiraki highlighted its dedication to education
and welfare. In partnership with Rotary Pacific Water for Life,
MFAT, the European Union, and Pleass Beverage - Vaiwai,
the Foundation led critical climate resilience projects,
significantly enhancing water infrastructure, sanitation, and
hygiene across various Fijian communities.
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Vodafone World of Difference

During the recent reporting period, the Vodafone ATH Fiji
Foundation successfully deployed a team of professional
volunteers through the Vodafone World of Difference
(WoD) program, with several volunteers becoming
full-time Executive Officers of their chosen charities. WaoD
Charity Rotary Pacific Water for Life secured a $213,000 Fiji
Water Foundation grant, benefiting five schools and
villages, and additional co-financing from LDS Charities and
MFAT for various water infrastructure projects. Save Fiji
also contributed to water security with donations to Rewa
Province and mobility devices for those in need. Looking
forward, the Rotary Pacific Water for Life Foundation, in
collaboration with partners, secured in-principle approval
for @ FD 1.8m three-year project with the EU to
address climate change impacts and empower civil society

organizations in governance and development.

Lifeline Fiji is a volunteer based organization that entails
provision of 3 24/7 toll-free  crisis  Helpline,
Community-based Crisis Support (Psychological First Aid),
Promoting emotional well-being to the public. The
foundation worked in partnership with Lifeline Fiji
providing assistance to families in western division and
organized fundraising events, including a Gala Dinner that
raised $80,000. Lifeline Fiji  also extended its reach
through  corporate  training  sessions,  benefiting
establishments like IHG Hotels and Shangri-La Fijian
Resort.
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BSignificant progress has been made in the Northern Charity
Alliance (NCA) and Equalise Fiji programs, with the completion
of Phase 1 of the Diversity Hub, which will support various
Civil Society Organizations (CSOs) and the Diversity Net
community. NCA is leading Financial Literacy and Regional
Governance Training in collaboration with Australian Volunteer
International, reflecting a commitment to continuous
learning. The WoD program maintains financial prudence,
while a Monitoring, Evaluation, and Learning (MEL) Framework
tracks progress. Additionally, NCA and Equalise Fiji offer
short courses for youth, partnering with the Ministry of
Education, Itaukei Affairs Board, Fiji National University, and
WWF to promote sustainable practices and economic
development through projects like the Gonedau Project.

Vodafone World of Difference saw significant advancements
this year with another call for expressions of interest
process, recruitment of five WoD candidates with diverse
expertise, including Gender and Development, Governance
and Financial Literacy, Inclusive Community Development,
and Youth Development.

i A
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The Foundation's expanded network now encompasses
an additional 50 charities, signifying growth, resilience,
and a steadfast dedication to community welfare.

The Vodafone ATH Fiji Foundation remains committed to
providing ongoing support to a variety of initiatives,
projects, and charities throughout Fiji and the wider
Pacific region. This support includes extensive funding for
grants, technical assistance, and capacity building, and
promoting the sustainability of these programs. The
Foundation will continue to allocate resources to ensure
that its mission of uplifting communities and fostering
positive social change remains steadfast.

Conclusion

In closing, the Vodafone ATH Fiji Foundation's 20th year
has been marked by unwavering dedication, substantial
achievements, and a resolute commitment to fostering
positive change across Fiji and the wider Pacific region.
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As we look to the future, we remain steadfast in our mission to uplift communities, drive sustainable development,
and build a brighter, more resilient future for all.

Grants Approved and Paid from July 2023 to June 2024

PARTICULARS FY 23-24
Vodafone World of Difference

WOD Admin Expenses 244,340
Management and Admin Expenses 16,272
Total WOD Expenses 260,612
Double Your Dollar - Donations

Hakwa Foundation 1,000
Northern Charity Alliance 1,000
Save Fiji 2,000
Lifeline Fiji 1,000
CBST 2,000
Red Cross Society 1,000
Ruve Foundation 1,000
Spinal Injury Association 1,000
Philanthropy Pacific 1,000
Omega Social Services 1,000
Total DYD 12,000
Sustainable Funding

Philanthropy Pacific 5,000
Spinal Injury Association 30,000
Northern Charity Alliance 23,550
Alevig8 Network & Ahava Project 7,000
Nageledamu Village Youth Club 2,500
Rotary Pacific Water For Life Foundation 50,000
Flametree Waldorf Kindergarten 5,000
FDPF-SIA 30,000
Fiji College Of General Practitioners 7,000
Motivate Pacific 6,000
Nausori Village Kindergarten 3,540
Naimawi Youth Club 2,500
Navatoga Youth Club 2,500
Bayly Memorial School 7,000
Vailose Youth Club 2,500
Gospel Primary School 8,000
Total Sustainable Funding 192,090
TOTAL DONATIONS 464,702
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AMALGAMATED TELECOM HOLDINGS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

In accordance with a resolution of the board of directors, the directors herewith submit the
consolidated statement of financial position of Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited (“the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary companies (“the Group”, individually referred to as “group entities”,
see note 32 for investments in subsidiaries) as at 30 June 2024, the related consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and

consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and report as follows:

Directors

The following were directors of the Holding Company at any time during the financial year and up to

the date of this report:

Mr Attar Singh - Chairman -Appointed 10 July 2024

Mr Dakshesh Patel
Mr Joweli Taoi

Mrs Tanya Waganika - Appointed 10 July 2024

Mr Peter Chan
Mr Vilash Chand
Mr Viliame Vodonaivalu

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Group during the year were the provision of telecommunications services.
The principal activities of the operating subsidiary companies were as follows:

Telecom Fiji Pte Limited

Vodafone Fiji Pte Limited including its
subsidiaries, Datec (Fiji) Pte Limited and its
subsidiary, Datec Australia Pty Limited, Datec
New Zealand Limited, Digitec ICT Limited
(PNG), Etech ICT Pte Limited (Singapore) and
Etech ICT Pty Limited (Australia).

Pte

Fiji International Telecommunications

Limited (FINTEL)

Fiji Directories Pte Limited

Amalgamated Telecom Holdings
Limited

(Kiribati)

Telecom Vanuatu Limited

Amalgamated Bluesky Telecom Holdings LLC
and its subsidiary companies including AST
Telecom LLC, American Samoa Entertainment
Inc., Bluesky Samoa Limited, Telecom Cook
Islands Limited, TCNZ Cook Islands Limited,
Teleraro Limited, Bluesky Pacific Holdings
Limited, Bluesky Cook Islands Investment
Limited, Bluesky Holding New Zealand Limited
and Teleraro Management Limited

elLandia Technologies, LLC and its subsidiary
companies including American Samoa Hawaii
Cable LLC and Samoa American Samoa Cable
Limited

ATH International Venture Pte Limited and its
subsidiary ~ compan including  Digitec
Communications Limited (PNG)

Principal Activities

Telecommunication, Information and Communications Technology (ICT)
and data services, post and pre-paid telephony services, sale of
telephone equipment, sale of office and computer equipment, provision
of internet related services and selling of prepaid transactions cards.

Cellular mobile telecommunication services, cloud services, e-transport,
other ancillary services on mobile platform and sale of computer
hardware and software, ICT services, equipment rental, provision of
technical support and other related services provided within the
technology industry.

International telecommunications facilities and provision of Internet
related services.

Compiling and publishing online and print Fiji telephone directory
services. In March 2024, the operations of this entity has been transferred
to Datec (Fiji) Pte Limited.

Telecommunications and ICT services in the Republic of Kiribati.
Telecommunication services in the Republic of Vanuatu.

Equity investments, provision of mobile wireless (GSM) and broadband
internet services, provision of telecommunication services which
includes local and international telecommunications services, sale of
telephone equipment, compilation and publishing of telephone
directory, provision of internet connection and internet related services,
operation of a mobile and fixed line telecommunications network and
provision of cable services and internet.

Equity investments, operation of an undersea fibre optic cable system
and the sale of broadband capacity.

Equity investments and telecommunication services
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AMALGAMATED TELECOM HOLDINGS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT [CONT'D]
Principal Activities (Cont’d)

There were no significant changes in the nature of principal activities of the Group during the
financial year.

Results

The consolidated profit after income tax attributable to the members of the Holding Company for
the year ended 30 June 2024 was $17,097,000 (for the period 1 April 2022 to 30 June 2023:
consolidated profit after income tax attributable to the members of the Holding Company of
$11,681,000).

Dividends

Dividends of $14,358,000 were proposed by the Holding Company, endorsed by the board of
directors, subject to its final approval by the shareholders at the AGM, for the year ended 30 June
2024 (for the period 1 April 2022 to 30 June 2023: $21,537,000)

Basis of Accounting - Going Concern

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors
consider the application of the going concern principle to be appropriate in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements as the directors believe that the Group has adequate funds to meet
its liabilities as and when they fall due over the next twelve months.

Bad Debts and Allowance for Expected Credit Loss

Prior to the completion of the financial statements of the Group, the directors took reasonable steps
to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to writing off of bad debts and the making of
allowance for expected credit loss. In the opinion of the directors, adequate allowance has been
made for expected credit loss.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, which would render
the amount written off for bad debts, or the allowance for expected credit loss in the Group,
inadequate to any substantial extent.

Current and Non-Current Assets

Prior to the completion of the financial statements of the Group, the directors took reasonable steps
to ascertain whether any current and non-current assets were unlikely to realise in the ordinary
course of business their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group. Where necessary,
these assets have been written down or adequate allowance has been made to bring the values of
such assets to an amount that they might be expected to realise.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, which would render
the values attributed to current and non-current assets in the Group’s financial statements
misleading.

Unusual Transactions

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group during the financial year
were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material unusual nature, nor
has there arisen between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, any item,
transaction or event of a material unusual nature, likely in the opinion of the directors, to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Group in the current financial year.
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AMALGAMATED TELECOM HOLDINGS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT [CONT'D]

Events Subsequent to Balance Date

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report
any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect significantly the
operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of the affairs of the Group, in
subsequent financial years.

Other Circumstances
As at the date of this report:

(i) no charge on the assets of any company in the Group has been given since the end of the
financial year to secure the liabilities of any other person;

(ii) no contingent liabilities have arisen since the end of the financial year for which any company
in the Group could become liable; and

(iii) no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of any company in the Group have become or are
likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial
year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the
Group to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen, not
otherwise dealt with in this report or the Group’s financial statements which would make adherence
to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group misleading or inappropriate.

Directors' Benefits

Since the end of the previous financial period, no director has received or become entitled to receive
a benefit (other than benefits disclosed in the financial statements and / or those included in the
aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors shown in the
consolidated financial statements or received as the fixed salary of a full-time employee of any
company in the Group or of a related corporation) by reason of a contract made by any company in
the Group or by a related corporation with the director or with a company of which the director is a
member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.

For and on behalf of the board and in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors.

Dated this 19th day of September 2024 .

. /%M
Director Director
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AMALGAMATED TELECOM HOLDINGS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In the opinion of the directors of the Holding Company:

a) the accompanying consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the Group is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the results of the Group for the year

ended 30 June 2024;

b) the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of the Group is drawn up so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2024;

c) the accompanying consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group is drawn up so as
to give a true and fair view of the movement in shareholders’ funds for the year ended 30 June
2024;

d) the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group is drawn up so as to give
a true and fair view of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2024;

e) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the group entities
will be able to pay their debts as and when they become due and payable;

f)  all related party transactions have been adequately recorded in the books of the group entities;
and

g) the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2015.

For and on behalf of the board and in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors.

Dated this 19th day of September 2024.

Director 3 % Director
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Tel: +679 331 4300 BDO
I BD Fax: +679 330 1841 Chartered Accountants

Email: info@bdofiji.com Level 10, FNPF Place
Offices in Suva and Lautoka 343 Victoria Parade
GPO Box 855
Suva, Fiji

AMALGAMATED TELECOM HOLDINGS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION TO THE DIRECTORS

As Auditor for the audit of Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited and subsidiary companies for the
financial year ended 30 June 2024, | declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

(@) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Companies Act, 2015 in
relation to the audit; and

(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

EDDD D

Wathsala Suraweera
Partner
Suva, Fiji

o

BDO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

19th September2024

BDO, Chartered Accountants, a Fiji Partnership, is a member firm of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Tel: +679 331 4300 BDO
I B D O Fax: +679 330 1841 Chartered Accountants
Email: info@bdofiji.com Level 10, FNPF Place
Offices in Suva and Lautoka 343 Victoria Parade
GPO Box 855

Suva, Fiji

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited and
its subsidiary companies (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Fiji, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

BDO, Chartered Accountants, a Fiji Partnership, is a member firm of BDO international Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT [CONT’D]
To the Shareholders of Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited (Cont’d)

Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the matter

Impairment Assessments of Non - Financial Assets

a) Impairment Assessment of Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill is recognised in a number
Cash Generating Units (CGUs).We focused on this
area due to:

We performed detailed procedures for all the CGUs
which included the following, amongst others:

e Reviewed and assessed the methodology used by

e the size of the goodwill balance ($136million
as at 30 June 2024);

e the Group’s assessment of the ‘Value In Use’
of the CGUs involves significant judgements
about the future results of the relevant CGU’s
and the discount rates applied to future cash
flow forecasts; and

e the Group incurs significant capital
investments annually and the capital
expenditure forecasts also involves significant
estimation and judgement process.

The Group performed an impairment assessment
of the goodwill by:

e calculating the Value In Use for each CGU
using a discounted cash flow model. These
models used cash flows (revenues, expenses
and capital expenditure) for each CGU for five
years, with a terminal growth rate applied to
the fifth year. These cash flows were then
discounted to net present value using each
CGU’s weighted average cost of capital
(WACC); and

e comparing the resulting Value In Use of each
CGU to their respective book values.

Refer to note 15(a) of the financial statements for
details of the Group’s impairment test and
assumptions.

Given the complexities involved in Goodwill
impairment assessment process, we got our
valuation experts involved to assist our senior
audit team members in assessing this matter.

the Group and its appropriateness for conducting
goodwill impairment tests.

Evaluated each CGU’s cash flow forecasts,
capital expenditure forecasts and the process by
which they were developed, including
considering the mathematical accuracy of the
underlying calculations.

We also compared them to the latest Board-
approved budgets. We found that the budgets
used in the Value In Use calculations were
consistent with the Board - approved budgets and
forecasts.

Compared current year (2024) actual results with
the prior year (2023) forecast to consider
whether any forecasts included assumptions that,
with hindsight, had been optimistic.

Evaluated the Group’s key assumptions for
growth rates in the forecasts by comparing them
to historical results and economic and industry
forecasts.

We got our valuation experts involved, to
recalculate management’s discount rates based
on the Group and its industry.

Valuation specialists were also involved in
assessing the Value In Use model for valuation
methodology, including the treatment of
assumptions for capital expenditure, working
capital, terminal value and the net present value
calculations.

Performed sensitivity analysis on all CGUs in two
main areas being the discount rate and terminal
growth rate assumptions.

For the CGUs with a higher risk of impairment we
performed a range of sensitivity analyses
including discount rate, terminal growth rate
assumptions and revenue growth.

Reviewed events and transactions occurring after
the reporting date that may indicate changes in
the recoverable amounts of CGUs.

Assessed the Group’s disclosures of the
quantitative and qualitative considerations in
relation to the valuation of goodwill, by
comparing these disclosures to our understanding
of the matter and against the requirements of the
accounting standards.
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To the Shareholders of Amalgamated Telecom Holdings Limited (Cont’d)

Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the matter

Impairment Assessments of Non - Financial Assets

b) Impairment Assessment of Property, Plant

and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is
considered to be one of the most significant
balances in the financial statements of the Group
given the size of the balance being $1,060miilon
as at 30 June 2024.

Furthermore, complexities are involved in
capitalization and impairment assessment process
of property, plant and equipment, in particular
due to evolving changes in technology in
telecommunications industry.

Significant investments are also made by the
Group annually in enhancing the infrastructure
networks in various subsidiary entities.

Given the evolving changes in technology in
telecommunications industry and significant
investments made in capital assets of the Group
over time, we have considered assessment of
impairment of property, plant and equipment as
a key audit aspect for the audit hence, considered
it as a key audit matter.

We performed following procedures in relation to
impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment amongst others:

® Reviewed the Group’s policies and procedures for
testing property, plant and equipment for
impairment and internal controls related to the
identification and assessment of impaired
property, plant and equipment.

® Ensured that the Group's impairment assessment
process complies with relevant accounting
standards.

e Reviewed the criteria used by the Group to
identify potential impairment indicators (e.g.,
significant decline in market value, physical
damage, changes in technology, upgrade into
new technology or market conditions).

e Assessed whether the Group’s process for
identifying impairment indicators is consistent
with accounting standards and industry practices.

® Checked for any signs of impairment based on
internal indicators and external indicators
affecting the telecommunications industry and
assessments carried out by the management
evaluating the indicators and conclusions
reached.
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

How our audit addressed the matter

Key audit matter -

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition of the Group is
relatively complex as the Group is
predominantly involved in
telecommunications industry and its
various telecommunication products
and revenue streams requires large
volume of data processing with the
significant volumes of transactions.

The audit focused on evaluating the
adequacy and appropriateness of the
Group’s revenue recognition policies,
testing the accuracy of revenue
calculations, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant accounting
standards.

Our procedures included amongst others:

With the assistance of our IT specialists, evaluated the
design and implementation of internal controls related to
revenue recognition and tested the operating effectiveness
of these controls through walkthroughs and sample testing.

This specifically included the evaluation of general IT
Control environment of the Group and its effectiveness for
our reliance.

Reviewed the Group’s revenue recognition policies and
procedures and evaluated whether these policies aligned
with the relevant accounting standards.

Assessed the Group’s practices for recognizing revenue from
various sources (e.g., pre-paid services, post-paid services,
subscription fees, equipment sales, and bundled services).

Obtained and reviewed a sample of customer contracts, in
particular for new products and plans introduced during the
year including bundled service agreements and long-term
contracts etc.

Identified the performance obligations in different
contracts and products and assessed the terms and
conditions to determine how they impact revenue
recognition.

Tested the complete reconciliations between the Group's
billing systems and the general ledger. This involved
analyzing and reconciling journal entries recorded in both
the billing system and the general ledger.

Selected a sample of revenue transactions for detailed
testing and verified the accuracy of revenue entries by
tracing them to supporting documentation such as
contracts, billings, and receipts.

Confirmed that revenue is recognized in accordance with
the contract terms and accounting policies.

Performed analytical procedures on prepaid revenue such
as developing a